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About MPS

The Medical Protection Society is the leading provider of comprehensive
professional Indemnity and expert adwice to doctors, dentists and health
professionals around the world

We are a mutual, not-for-profit organisation oifering more than 270,000
members help with legal and ethical problems that anse from ther
professional practice This includes chinical negligence claims, complaints,
medical councll inquines, legal and ethical dilemmas, discplinary
procedures, Inquests and fatal-accident inquines

Farness 15 at the heart of how we conduct our busingss We actively
protect and promote the interests of members and the wider profession
Equally, we believe that patients who have suffered harm from negligent
treatment should receive farr compensation We promote safer practice by
running nsk management and education programmes to reduce avoidable
harm

MPS 1s not an insurance company The benefits of membership are
discretionary — this allows us the flexibility t0 provide help and support
even In unusual creumstances




Chairman's statement

MPS can lock back over 2011 with a degree of satisfaction
Membership continues to increase and has reached record
numbers, so subscnption income 1s buoyant However we should
not be complacent

Cver the last two or three years, | have drawn attention to a
significant nse In the numbers of claims for negligence expenenced
by doctors and dentists In many temiones as well as an increase
in the sums needed to setle each clam Unfortunately this
disturbing trend continued dunng 2011 Moreover the appetite
for personal iInury claims 1s not confined to medical negligence
For example, the proportion of motor vehicle accidents resulting
in clams has never been higher, and over the last year along the
number of legal companies that have sprung up to manage such
clams increased by 20% There 15 little doubt that the extensive
and severe economic downturn coninbuted to this widespread
nse in personal Njury itgation, and 1it 18 encouraging 1o see some
governments starting to show an interest in imiting the cost to
soclety as a whole

Inevitably, some of this itigation has Iittle ment, and it 1s pleasing to
report that in 2011 MPS had some notable successes defending
high-value clams and hmiting associated legal costs In an
exireme case, cne clamant's sokcitors incurred costs of more
than £236,000 while secunng just £2,000 for therr client In court
When we appealed, all these absurdly disproportonate costs
were disallowed

Additional reasons are lkely to he behind clams aganst doctors
Patients are now encouraged to behave as consumers, and often
consider they have a nght to the healthcare of ther choice While
these atttudes have some ment, they can give patients higher
and sometimes wholly unrealistic expectations of what can be
achieved [n addition, if different aspects of someone's heatth are
treated by dfferent healthcare prowders, continuity of care may
be imperfect with obwvicus scope for Inadequate communication
between all nvolved Any fragmentation of a country's health
service 1s ltkely to accentuate thes problem

So it 1s not surpnsing that many doctors feel under pressure
when faced with a patient, armed wath internet searches into
details of ther condition, and aware of ther ability to complain or
change providers If dissatisfied Extra pressure comes from the
need to provide value for money, and to work wathin sometimes
barely adequate resources Pressure leads to errors Emrors lead
to complaints, and demands for disciplinary action and perhaps
financial compensation In the UK, the GMC expenenced
another sharp nse in referrals of doctors, both from the public
and employers In 2010 nearly 3% of all registered doctors were
refered One measure of the extent to which UK doctors need
everyday support from MPS 1s the number of telephone calls
members made to our medicolegal adwisers asking for help
In 2011 these averaged over 3,300 per month, 5% up on the
previous year Sadly, it 1s most unlikely that doctors' incomes have
kept pace with the cost of meeting these medicolegal challenges

MPS started in London

in 1892 Now, 120 years
later, we are proud to
serve members in dozens
of countnes around the
world

Nicholas Davies
Chairman of the Council

Whilst it is pleasing to report that investments held on behalf of all
members have increased, even in these difficult economic times,
from around £1 5 bilhion to almost £1 7bn, the costs of meeting
negligence clams and defending doctors in disciplinary heanngs
have continued to iIncrease The increase n nvestments 1s partly
a result of a continuing defensive diversification of our portfolio,
but also of significant gains in ndex-inked glts It remans
absolutely essential to maintain adequate financial resources to
provide long-term secunty These accounts confirm this 1s the
case Members know that insurance companies can and do
go into hquidation, but they nghtly assume MPS will be there
to meet fully ther potential labilities even though these may not
anse for many years to come

MPS started in London in 1892 Now, 120 years later, we are
proud to serve members in dozens of countnes arcund the world
Tony Masen, our Chief Executive, retired at the end of 2011
Throughout his long and distinguished involvement with MPS,
starting more than 25 years ago when he was our consufting
actuary, he has articulated and champicned the virtues of the
MPS ethos, excellent service provided by a mutual society of
professionals, free of demands made by shareholders Under
his leadership MPS has also greatly extended its educational
role For example we now provide nsk management and
communication skills workshops throughout the medical school
cumculum in Singapore, and believe this approach will bear
fruit In years to come We will greatty miss Tony, but happily
he will remain a member of the MPI Board and so continue to
help drrect our nvestment strategy Simon Kayll takes over as
Chief Executive n 2012 Simon has been working for MPS for
18 years, most recently as Finance Director No-one knows the
business better, and members can be confident MPS remams
in the safest of hands

Two other Council members retired in the summer Leela Kapila
and Richard Youell We will miss them both and are grateful
for ther trenchant contnbutions over the last 8 years In ther
places we warmly welcome Professor Kay-Tee Khaw CBE,
Professor of Clrical Gerontology at Cambndge University
and a distinguished contnbutor to research into the chronic
diseases of later life, and Mr Patnck Forbes, a Consultant
Urogynaecologist at Addenbrooke’s Hospital, Cambridge This
will be my last report as MPS Chairman as my term on Council
ends next June Although | leave with sadness, | am delighted
that Kay-Tee I1s able to take my place and, with cur new Chief
Executive, to lead MPS through future challenges

Nicholas Davies
Chairman of the Council
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Chief Executive's report

| was appointed as Chief Executive at the start of 2012, following
my predecessor Tony Mason's planned retirerment Whilst [ am new
to the role, | am not new to MPS | have worked for MPS for the last
18 years and 13 of those have been spent as Finance Director In
my place as Finance Director, | am delighted to welcome Howard
Kew who has a vaned background including insurance and
nvestment management

By convention, this report, as part of the Annual Report and
Accounts, provides the reader with an overview of the business
results for the year, touching on the financial performance, business
developments and particular challenges faced dunng the year
This | will do, but first | would like to reiterate MPS's purpose and
pedgree MPS was founded in 1892 and thus the current year
marks our 120th of sering members N the health professions In
addition to our longevity, MPS 15 a mutual, which means we are
owned by you, our members This has two distinct benefits for
you firsty all the money you pay by way of subscnptions 1s used
to provide service and indemnity only to members, any surplus 15
retained for the benefit of members — no funds are paid as dvidends
to third parties Secondly, as members you are both customers
and owners this means we are very focused on ensunng that
everything we do 1s for the ultimate benefit of members

Business Overview

As predicted by my predecessor In this report last year, 2011 has
been full of challenges [ndeed, MPS faces a more challenging
environment now than has been the case for at least the past
18 years The challenges result from increased compettion,
detencrating clams expenence, an uncertan Investment
environment and an economic environment that in some countnes
has resulted In significant downward pressure on our members’
incomes, this can create a confict when we need to increase
subscnption rates in response to worsening clams expenence

MPS has done and continues to do much to counter these
challenges we provide both educaton and nsk management
expertise 10 help control nsk generally and we seek to identify
and control the nsk that poorly performing members present to
the rest of the membership, our investment diversification helps
to reduce the effect of market volatlity and preserve gains already
made, and we continue to raise awareness of the value that MPS
membership represents in terms of service quality, financial secunty
and, ultimately, peace of mind

| am pleased to report that MPS increased s member numbers
in the year by over 10,000 (4 0%) This growth was across all
countnes, but was particulatly marked In the West Indies and
Singapore Evenin the UK where competiion 1s at s most fierce,
membership numbers grew by just over 3,000 (2 2%)

Financial Overview

The overall financial resutt, whilst better than 2010, was not as
good as we had antcipated Subscnpton ncome grew and
nvestments performed well but total dams development was

MPS has an unparalleled
expernence of managing
the rsks associated with
providing advisory and
indemnity services to
members

Simon Kayll
Chief Executive

more than anticipated Net assets after allowing for reported clams
have ncreased n the year by £108 2 milion, to £1,127 Om On
the face of It this fooks tke a decent result However, this does
not allow {or the obligations that MPS will assume, subject to the
exercising of discretion, for adverse incidents that occurred before
31 December 2011, but that have not yet been reported  Whilst
these future costs are not an actual obligation untl discretion
has been exercised, MPS has collected subscnption income
commensurate with eventually assuming these obligations, so
the full financial prcture needs to take account of these potential
obkgations In doing so, MPS's financial position has detenorated
somewhat Such detenoration comes hard on the heels of an even
larger detencration in 2010

This detenoration in MPS's financial position 1s the direct result
of clams expenence beng worse than anticipated As a result,
MPS needs to reflect this worsening view of the likely future cost
and number of clams in future subscnptions, to ensure that
sufficient funds are collected to meet our obligations to prowvide an
ndemnity on behalf of members Any decision made to increase
subscnption rates 1s done In the Ight of ndependent actuanal
advice of the development of claims costs and number of clams,
and after considerable internal discussion In deciding to Increase
subscnptions rates, | appreciate that, particulary in Ireland and the
UK where income from both State and pnivate work is, at the best,
level, such increases will add to your financial pressures A more
detaled review of the financial results ¢an be found in the Finance
Director's report

Claims expenence

The costs assocrated with cinical neghgence clams represent the
largest single expense for MPS This cost has been increasing for
a number of years in many countnes but especially the UK and
Ireland, where both the average cost of clams (seventy) and the
number of claims (frequency} has increased Many of the reasons
for the Increasing seventy and frequency are beyond MPS's control

The Increasing seventy 1s dnven by ever growing demands for
compensation in the Iight of Injury resulting from clinical negligence
Whilst this 1s maost significant in the UK it s, n our expenence, by
no means imited to the UK A particutar element of compensation
which has grown considerably in recent years 1s the annual care
package awarded to clamants whose injunes are so severs that
they requre some form of daly care By way of example, the
settlernent for a recent non-MPS UK case that sadly resuited In
severe brain damage to a young giri included a lump sum of nearly
£5m, plus an annual payrment of £450,000 This case was not due
to medica! negtgence, but the resufting munes are very similar
to those that might result from medical neglgence and wiiist
the damages awarded are at the upper end of our expeclations,
they are indicative of the level of compensation currently being
awarded in the UK Although it vanes by country, money used to
pay compeansation will, In many instances, have a direct or indirect
mpact on the funds avalable to prowide healthcare Thus, whilst
far compensation for an indndual Inured through no fault of ther
own s desirable, it needs to be balanced by the impact on the
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wider society Ultimately society needs to balance what 15 far
compensation aganst what 1s affordable

It's harder to be sure what I1s dnving increasing frequency In general
it 15 probably down to an increasing belef by patents that the
science of medicine produces perfect outcomes and a fractunng
of the traditional model of continuity of care, particularly in pnmary
care, which means patents no longer have the same long-term
relatonship they once had with thewr chiician There 1s Ittle hope
that any of these dnvers are being tackled, especially in the UK and
Ireland, where, If anything, things are getting worse In addition,
it 1s evident that the economic climate has caused an increase in
smaller value clams This 1s very evident In Ireland, and especialty
so for dental clams where frequency has rocketed

MPS 15 doing what it can to help control claims costs

The dnvers of Increasing clams seventy and frequency are generally
beyond the direct control of MPS However, MPS can have an
influence both generally and specifically in relation to clams for
which MPS may provide an indemnity We devote considerable
resources to do what we can and thus ensure that subscnptions
are kept as low as they can be

Education

MPS has provided education to its members for a number of years,
but effort devoted to this was increased considerably about four
years ago and MPS 1s now ane of the largest non-clinical educators
of health professionals in the world Our educational focus 1s on
commurication skills, team working In the clincal ermvaronment
and administration matters such as medical records Dunng 2011
MPS has been successful in getting s educational courses on
the residency traming programme for doctors in Singapore and
specialist regstrar traning programme 1N South Afnca and, dunng
2011, we continued to expand the prowvision of our educational
courses in alf of the countnes in which we operate

Our education courses are prophylactic in that they are open to all
our members and are also prowided specrfically to help reduce the
future nsk of Indmdual members who have already been identified
as having a considerably worse nsk profile than the average

in Hong Kong we jointly sponsor a prize with the Hong Kong
Acadermy of Medicine for mechcal ethics and patient safety, which
was presanted for the first time In November 2011

As well as the delvery of physical courses, MPS launched in 2011
a number of web based e-learming courses Feedback has been
very positive and it I1s particularty appreciated by those who have
Iimited access to physically delivered training, for example, some of
our members in the West Indies

Risk management

MPS also prowides a range of nsk management programmes
amed at pnmary care through courses and active assessments
working in partnership with the clincians  Again, 2011 saw an
ncreasing provision of such work

indmidual members with & worse than average nsk profife

The practice of medicine and dentistry 15 nherently asky and this
nsk 1s generally unaffordable for an indmdual to shoulder on their
own The shanng of thus nsk amongst fellow clinicians makes the
nsk affordable for an indwvidual MHowever, the cost of the shared
nsk can be pushed up f the nsk profile of some INdwviduals 15
considerably worse than therr peers To hrmut this effect, MPS takes
steps 1o dentify such indmduals and work with them to improve
therr nsk profile However, If this 1s ultimately not possitle, in the
interests of the wider membership, MPS will consider remowing
them from membership

External relations

Whilst MPS may not be in a position to directly change some of
the drivers of Increasing claims, it can work to educate and inform
those who are In such a position Last year we continued this
work In many countnes Two examples are, In the UK, where we
connected with politicians and medical opinion formers about the
ever Increasing cost of chnical negigence, and in South Afnca,
where we tock part in a review sponscred by the Minister of Health,
looking at the nfluence of the legal profession in drving up clinical
negligence claims and what could be done to influence this

Counseling

Being subject to a clam or complant can be a very stressful
expenence for any health professional This stress In itself can
increase the likelihood of another adverse Incident likely to give nse
to a further complaint or ¢lam To help address this nsk, m 2011
MPS raolled out an international counseliing service avalable to all
its members who have been subject to a complamt or clam Thisis
operated by a fully ndependent provider and 1s totally confidential
The feedback to date has been very positive and this 1s a service
ghly valued by those that have used it

Summary

In financial terms, 2011 was better than 2010, but the development
of claims expenence was somewhat worse than anticipated and this
will inewitably place more upward pressure on future subscnptions

However, MPS remains financially strong and remamns dedicated 1o
helping its members bath reactively when you need advice or are
subject to a complant or claim, and proactively, through education
and nsk managemert

The coming year 1s ikely 1o be no less difficult than the last two
but MPS has an unparalleled expenence of managing the nsks
associated with provding adwvisory and indemnity semices to
members n many dfferent countnes and junsdictions From
our current positton of strength In all our markets, | have every
confidence that we can manage the cument challenges and
continue to provide an exemplary service to our members and
comprehensive Indemnity as required

Simon Kayll
Chief Executive
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Statistics

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK
NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION (GRAPHS) NOT REQUIRED BY
COMPANIES HOUSE HAS BEEN REMOVED
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Finance Director's report

This 15 my first repert to members as your Finance Director
following my appointment in December 2011 | bring extensive
financial and senior management expenence from a vanety of
sectors and | am looking forward to providing MPS with financial
leadership in what are challenging times for all of us

Financial Overview

| am pleased to report that MPS 13 maintaning its strong reported
position with net assets increasing by 10 6% over the past year,
from £.1,018 8m to £1,127 Om at the end of 2011, showing an
improvement of £108 2m

However, as reported by the Chief Executive cur expenence
indicates further upward trends in both the frequency and seventy
{cost) of medical and dental clams  So whilst our reported net
asset position has improved, our estimate of the increasing costs
of potental clams not yet reported to us leads to our overall view
that the financial position of MPS has somewhat detenorated over
the past 12 months

Actuanal Estimates

The very nature of the nsks we indemnify and the services we
provide to members mean that the full costs orly emerge over
a long penod of tme There may be a considerable reporting
delay followed by an extended period whilst the exact labihty
1s established Each year, we share data with our iIndependent
actuanal advisers, who provide estimates of the reserves that
may be required to meet these unknown future costs The
actuang) estimates look at the longer term trends on a consistent
basis and calculate the expected cutcome from the current year
and all previous years from which clams may anse

In particular, these trends show a marked increase In expected
frequency and seventy in UK {except Scotland) general practice,
increases In the frequency of medical clams from the Repubhc
of Ireland and an increase In seventy, though partly offset by a
reduction in frequency, N other areas of UK medical We have
also seen Increases In the expected numbers of worldwide dental
clams

A combination of these factors has led us to Increase our estimate
of these future costs by 16% compared to our positon at the end
of 2010, and we have carefully set subscnption rates to reflect the
different nsks of dfferent types and locations of practice Also, the
possibiity of an increase in the utihsation of Penodical Payment
Orders as a means of setting seme clams i the future has led us
to set up the mecharnism for funding this approach, and we have
allowed for this when considenng our overall financial strength

Reported Financial Performance

The principal cost components of our reported financial position
for the year are members' clams that we pay out, changes in

We will continue to invest
in people, systems and
infrastructure to ensure
that MPS can provide

the levels of services
members nghtly expect

Howard Kew
Finance Director

our recorded estimates for clams that have been reported to
MPS, the costs of prowding advice and support with matters
other than negligence clams, and the administration costs of
delivering our services

Income comes predominanty from member subscnptions and
the return on our nvested assets It s vital to understand that the
resources of MPS are managed on a long term basss to ensure
that we are not financially impedad when exercising our discretion
to support members and meet future potental obligations
Consequently, the ncome we generate each year must be
sufficient to meet the cost of clams that wal anse from that year,
whether or not they are reported and settled in the year

Corsidenng our members’ claims first, we are showing a total
cost of £183 8m for 2011 This 1s considerably lower than 2010
when we recognised £258 7m, a figure that we would regard
as exceptionally high However as noted above, we are seeng
an increasing trend in both the seventy and frequency of clams
and 1n the associated cost of setthng and managing them Clam
costs of £1805m and £190 9m were recorded n 2008 and
2009 respectively and these figures demonstrate the longer
term detenoration of claims expenence Protecting our members
against these increasing costs 15 the reason we need to ensure
that there 1 a commensurate growth in our net asset position

The costs of supporting our members with matters other than
negligence claims has also reduced shghtly compared to last year,
with the accounts showing a charge of £51 7m versus 2010's
figure of £52 7m

The other major components of our costs are the operational
and administrative costs of delvenng services to our members,
providing educational services and matenals to help rmitigate nsks,
and meeting the costs of ensunng excellent external relations are
manianed to ensure members’ Interests are always adequately
and appropnately represented We have mnvested n these
important areas in the year, adrministration costs have ncreased
from £17 Om in 2010 to £185m n 2011, with the figures for
educaton, publcations and external relations being £7 9m for
2010, nsing to £8 6m n 2011

In 2012 and the coming years we will continue to invest in people,
systems and infrastructure to ensure that MPS can prowde the
levels of services members nghtly expect To that end we have
embarked on a major T project and are In the process of acquinng
a new freehold property to provide adequate facilties for all our
staff as demands for assistance and support continue to nse

Turning to ncome, the group reported total subscnption and other
income of £318 3m in 2011, an increase of 7 3% on 2010's figure
of £296 Bm This Increase anses from the overall effect of a 4%
increase in the number of members, coupled with a change N
the mix of membership and the 2011 increase in subscnptions to
reflect the cost trends discussed above
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Finance Director's report continued

Finally, MPS's investment performance reflects the return on
members’ assets which are needed io meet both reported and
unreported potential future costs Whilst 2011 was generally a
difficutt year for Investment markets, MPS's mvestment subsidiary
was abie to compensate with a very strong performance In its
largest single asset class of UK index Iinked government bonds
We hold these inflatton related assets to broadly match our UK
habilities as the cost of Indmdual claims 1s also inflating, albeit with
reference to a different index than UK retal pnces In 2011, this
market benefited from huge demand as other investors sought
out the combination of very high credit secunty with a desire to be
protected from inflation nsk This drove prices up, and as a large
holder of this type of asset we saw the value of our overall portfolio
mncrease to almost £1 7bn by the end of 2011, up from £1 5bn
at the end of 2010 The performance of these assets contnbuted
significantly to an overall investment return of aimost 5% in 2017,
although this was below the return for 2010 (+3%), which was
achieved in a year of much more general asset growth

The investment performance reported above 1s In Sterfing terms
and this does not always reflect the underying performance of
assets Invested In local currency One of MPS's key strategies
15 to match local currency habidities with assets in the same
currency 1o remove currency exchange nsks from our finances
For example, in South Afnca we hold investments locally to
cover our best estimates of our habilites there Dunng 2011
these investments performed positively In Rand terms but as the
currency weakened agamnst Sterling significantly in the penod, the
Sterling value of the nvestments fell and thus negatively impacted
our overall Sterling investment return Whilst thus had an adverse
effect on our Investment return, the weakening of the Rand meant
that the Sterling value of our Rand labilities also fell and so our
overall financial position was not impacted Had we not held a
matching level of assets this would not have been the case

Conclusion

Combining these pnncipal dnvers with other, less significant,
tems of ncome and costs we are able to report the improvement
n net assets of £108 2m, which will help to ensure that MPS
continues to protect our members' mterests n 2012 and beyond,
dunng this penod of economic uncertainty and a detencrating
clams environment

Howard Kew
Finance Director
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Council member biographies

FRANK ATTWOOD

Frank Attwood was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS in June 2004 He is a Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants i England and Wales and was formerly
a partner In RSM Robson Rhodes LLP He was, until retinng
on 31 December 2008, Deputy Charr of the International Ethics
Standards Board of the International Federation of Acccuntants
His professional expenence covers audits of insurance entities,
charities and other regulated companies

KEITH BRADLEY

Keith Bradley joned the Council as a non-executve drrector
of MPS 1in July 2007 and was elected by the membership at
the Annual General Meeting in June 2008 He 1s a member of
the House of Lords, 1s a non-executwe director of the Chnstie
Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Char of Manchester Salford
and Trafford LIFT Company and 15 Asscciate Vice-President
of the University of Manchester He was formerly member of
Parlament for Manchester Withington {1987 to 2005), served
as a Government Minister and a member of the Health Select
Committee He 1s a member of the Privy Council

TREVOR BURKE

Trevor Burke joined the Council as a non-executive director of
MPS In June 2010 and as Charman of MPS’s subsidiary, Dental
Protection Limited, his positen on Councll ts ex officio and thus
he 15 not elected by the membership He has been Professor
of Prmary Dental Care at the University of Birmingham and
Honorary Consultant in Restorative Dentistry since 2000 He has
authored or co-authored four books and published 270 peer
reviewed papers and has been awarded over 75 research grants
His main research interests include properttes and applications
of tooth-coloured restoratve matenals, chrical evaluation of
matenals and ther performance in general dental practice, the
design of an index of oral health for clnical audit and qualty
control, and Il health retrement among dentists He s also an
examiner for the Royal College of Surgeons of Edinburgh and 1s
the Editonal Director of Dental Update

1AN CROXFORD

lan Croxford joined the Counci as a non-executive director of
MPS in November 2007 and was elected by the membership
at the Annual General Meeting in June 2008 He 15 a barnster,
being called to the Bar in 1976 (Gray's Inn}, was appointed a
QC in 1993, became a Bencher at Gray's Inn n 2001 and was
appointed as a Deputy High Court Judge (Chancery Dmsion) in
2007 lan's professional practice is mainly substantial commercial
and professional negligence (non-medical} ihigation He has,
since 1990, served as a Governor of Westclff High School for
Boys and became Chairman of Governors in 1985

NICHOLAS DAVIES

Nick Davies was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS in May 2001 and was appointed Charman of
Council in 2003 He has been a member of the Clams Adwisory
Committee since 1996 He 15 a consultant anaesthetist at the
Southampton Unversity Hospitals NHS Trust and was the Clinical
Servaces Director for Anassthesia, Theatres and Intensive Care
from 1984 to 1897, and 2001 to 2003 He was also an examiner
for FRCA, Royal College of Anaesthetists from 1991 to 2003

MARK DAVIS

Mark Dawvis was elected to the Council as a non-executive director
of MPS In June 2009 He s in general practice in Leeds and has
been a pnncipal since 1984 He acts as an occupational medical
adwviser to a number of companies and has since 2000 acted as
an independent expert witness He 1s now on the Executive of
Leeds South and East CCG Between 2007 and 2012 he was a
board member of a practice based commussioning consortium
and from 2002 to 2008 was a member of the Professional
Executive Committee of the East Leeds Primary Care Trust He
has a special Interest In cardiovascular medicine and has served,
or does serve, on a number of Department of Health, Pnmary
Care and NIHCE committees and working groups related to this
clhnical area

YASMIN DRABU

Yasmin Drabu was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS In June 2009 She was appointed as a
Consuitant Microbiologist in the Health Service in 1982 In 2000,
she became Medical Director at North Middiesex University
Hospital (NMUH) Her experience at NMUH was extensive and
challengng with wide-ranging responsibilities including working
as Acting Chief Executive In March 2006 she moved to Barking
Havenng and Redbndge University Hospital NHS Trust (BHRUT)
as a full trme Medical Director and in February 2010 she was
seconded to the Blood Policy and Infectious Diseases Division In
the Department of Health Yasmin has over 35 years expenence
m the NHS She has been the Executve Lead for Chrical
Governance in both NMUH and BHRUT She has mplemented
maor programimes of developing clinicians as leaders in both
the Trusts In 2009, BHRUT was voted the top NHS Trust for
Innovaton In London In 2004 she was awarded the Asian
Professional Woman of the Year, in 2007 she was awarded an
Honorary Fellowship of the Royal College of Physicians She 1s
currently a Mentor for Mosaic and Tower Hamlet College

MARY FAVIER

Mary Favier was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director in June 2005 She 1s a GP pancipal and partner In a
practce in Cork She sits on the Professional Competence
and Membership committees of the Insh College of General
Practitioners She i1s on the editonal board of Forum, the ICGP
general practice magazine, and a member of the editonal board
of a consumer health information website
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PATRICK FORBES

Patnck Forbes was elected to the Councl as a non-
executive director of MPS in June 2011 He 1s a Consultant
Urogynaecclogist at Addenbrooke’s Hospital, Cambndge, and
previously a Consultant in Obstetncs & Gynaecology n the
RAF and at Hinchingbrooke Hospital, where he has also been
Chinical Director and Royal College Tutor He has been a regional
panelist for the Confidential Enquiry into Stilloirths and Deaths
in Infancy He serves as an examner for Final MB at Cambndge
Unwersity, and 18 a member of the Academy of Experts and
expert panel for the Speedy Resolution Scheme In Wales

TAJ HASSAN

Ta) Hassan was elected to the Counci as a non-executive
director of MPS 1n June 2008 He has been a member of the
MPS Claims Adwisory Commuttee since 2004 and s a Consultant
In Emergency Medicine at the Leeds Teaching Hospitals NHS
Trust He s presently Vice President of the College of Emergency
Medicine {CEM} He 1s also the national Director for eLearning
for the College's ENLIGHTENmMe programme, an examner for
Fellowship of the CEM, and a member of the College's Safer
Care Commuttee

SIMON KAYLL

Simon Kayll was elected to the Council as an executive director
N June 2003 He i1s a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales He joned MPS in February
1994 as Chief Accountant and was successively appointed as
Financial Controller and then Finance Director in January 1999,
also serving as Company Secretary for MPS and most of its
subsidiary companies from March 2000 until December 2011
He was appomted Chief Executive of MPS on 1 January 2012

KAY-TEE KHAW

Kay-Tee Khaw was elected to the Council as a non-executive
director of MPS in June 2011 She 1s Professor of Clinical
Gerontology at Cambndge Unwersity and Fellow of Gonwvlle
and Caus College She 1s a Fellow of the Academy of Medical
Sciences, has chared the International Society of Cardiovascular
Epidemiclogy and Prevention, served as a board member of the
Higher Educaticn Funding Council for England, NHS Central
Research and Development Committee, MRC Health Services
and Publc Health Research Board, Cambndgeshire Health
Authonty, Wellcome Trust Population Sciences Panel, and the
World Heart Federation Council on Epidemiclogy and Prevention
She has also acted as a trustee of the Kennedy Memonal Trust,
the Bntish Heart Foundation and Help the Aged

KEVIN LEWIS

Kevin Lewis was elected to the Council as an executive director
inJune 2003 He 1s formerty a general dental practitioner and was
a member of the onginal Board of Dental Protection Limited from
1989 to 1992, before being appointed as a dentolegal adviser
with Dental Protection in 1992 He was subsequently appointed
Dental Director of MPS in 1998 His responsibilties include the
delivery of all aspects of dentolegal services to members as well
as marketing Dental Protection He was an Associate Editor
of Dental Practice (1981 to 2006), and since 2006 has been
the Consultant Editor of Dentistry He was a member of GDC
steenng group on Recertification and the former Vice President
of the Bntish Association for Dental Therapists and Council
member of the British Society for Restorative Dentistry

ELIZABETH VALLANCE

Elizabeth Vallance joined the Council as a non-executive director
of MPS in February 2005 and was elected by the membership at
the Annual General Meeting in June 2005 She has been a non-
executive director of HMV Group, Norwich Union ple, CGNU plc
and Aviva plc and 1s on the board of Charter European Trust plc
She was Reader n Government and Politics in the University
of Londen and head of department, professor and Fellow at
Queen Mary, London She 1s also a Fellow of the Institute of
Education, University of London, where she was chairman from
2000 to 2009 She 1s Chairman of | CAN, the national children's
communication chanty, of the Centre for Mental health and of
CEDR and chaired St George's Healthcare NHS Trust and the
Advisory Committee on Clincal Excellence Awards She 1s a JP,
was High Shenff of Greater Lendon from 2008 to 2009, and
was, from 2004 to 2011 on the Commitiee on Standards n
Public Life

MPS also has a President, Si Peter Moms This posttion is not
a director of the board under the terrns of the Comparves Act,
but the President is elected by the membership and s entitied
to. and does attend Council meetings, participating fully in the
discussions

PETER MORRIS

Peter Morns was elected President in June 2007 He 15 Nuffield
Professor of Surgery Ementus and former Charman of the
Department of Surgery and Director of the Trangplant Centre,
Urwversity of Oxford He was, from 2001 to 2004, President of
the Royal College of Surgeons of England He 15 also Director
of the Centre for Ewvidence in Transplantation at the Royal
College of Surgeons and the University of London and Honorary
Professor He is a Fellow of the Royal Society and the Academy
of Medical Sciences, and Foreign Member of both the Instiiute
of Medicine of the National Academy of Sciences and the
Amencan Philosophical Society
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Advisers and Senior Staff

Claims Advisory Committee

Charman
Susan Sellers MB chs MD FRCOG

Vice-Chairman
Frances Cranfigld ms B3 MACS LACP DRCOG FRCGP

Secretary
Emma Hallinan LLB{Hons) Sosctor

Commuttee members

Martin Ashley me BS MRCS LRCP FRCA MRCGR FRCart
Robert Battersby me Bs FRCS

Peter Campbell MB BS FRCSEG(OM)

Nicholas Davies ma bmoxan) MRCP FRCA

Yasmin Drabu me cng DGH FRCPath FRCP

Mary Favier Me 8BCh MICGP MRCGP

Patnck Forbes ma che FRCOG

Ta) Hassan mo FCEM MRCP DA FRCSEd

Huw Jenking ma Mo rRCP FRCPCH

John F Mayberry nse Mp LLM FRCP{London & Glasgow} FRCP(heland)
Keith Parsons mMe cne FRCSEd FRCS

Professor Marc Winslet ms Frcs

Medical Division

Mecdhcal Director
Priya SIngh LLB{Hons) ME ChB MRCGP FFFLM

Deputy Medical Director
Rob Hendry MB cha MRCGP DRCOG MPhiLaw & Etrics) MEA FFFLM

Heads of Medical Services
Nick Clements (L B(Hons) ME GhB DRCOG FFFLM
Alison Metcalfe BmMRCGP DRCOG PaDLaw FRFLM

Head of Medical Services — Asia
Ming Keng Teoh LM MSc MB Che FRCS(Ed) FRCS(ENG) Chv MFFLM

Head of Medical Services — Afnca
Graham Howarth Mz Cha MMed(02G) MPhilBcethics)

Head of Medical Services — New Zealand
Brandon Gray MB ChB LLB MPH MRCGP FAFPHM

Head of Membership Governance
Peter Mackenzie ma MB BS MRCGF DRCOG PgDLaw FFFLM

Senvor Medicolegal Advisers

Angela Bramley (18iHons) MB BS MRCGP FFFLM

Richard Dempster LLBHone} ME BS MRCGP DRCOG MFFLM
George Fernie wLe MB GnB MPhi FRCGP FACH(En) DFM FRFLM
Susan Jones Ma LLBHanst MB BS MRCGP DRCOG FFFUM
Dawnd Stewart me BS MFFLM

Medicolegal Advisers

Zad Al-Nayar em MRCGP DRCOG D7D

John Barker Jpme BS CMJ ACH FFRM

Jonathan Bernstein ma Me Che MACGP DCH PGDypCard
Pallavi Bradshaw macantab M8 8Cnr GOL MRCOphth

Sarah Cornock LLM MB ChB DA DRCOG DoceMed MRCGP MFFLM
Marka Davies ma BSc M8 BS MRCS{Eng) MFFLM

Angela Farquhar me cnB MRCGP DRCOG MFFLM

Lilane Field maMB BS FRCA PgOLaw MFFLM Bamster
Josephing Galin ma MB BCh BAD LRCSI MRCPIED

Lyn Gnffiths Lumv MB BS MFFLM

Helen Hartley escHonst M2 GhBiHons) “RCA MBA

Bryony HOOpEer LM BM MRCGP MFPH DRCOG MFFLM

Daniel Kremer mB BS bCH MRCGP LLB Bamster

Tom Lloyd Lim M2 ChE MD MAGS MFFLM

Paut Mackin me 35 Phb MRCPsych

Angeligque Mastint maMe 85 MFFLM

Sonya McCullough vB Ben MSe BAQ MRGOG DFFP MFFLM
Gordon McDavid us cre mrce

Jayne Molodynski me che FRca

Janet Page 1M BSc MB BS FRCR MRCP MFFLM

Roger Palmer Luv BSe{Hons) FhD MB BChr FRCP(Edin) FRCPCH
Andrew POwEer BScHons) FRCGP FRCP(Glas) DRCOG Dip Ther
Carol Seymour MaOxon) MaCariat) PrD FRCPath FRCP FFFLM PgDpLaw PgDpPLS
Richard Stacey Mamedical Ettics & Law) MB ChB MRACGP MFFLM
Gillian Talbot me 85 MACGP FFFLM

Assocate Medicolegal Advisers
John Adams majHedthicara Ettucs & Law) MB CHB MRCP FRCA FFIGM
Sarah Townley Me Cha MRCGP CFFP

General Practice Complaints Advisers
Tern Bonnici

Sue Taylor saopen

Patrncia Berlyn sscitons) MAHearhcare law)

Medical Advisers and Consultants — New Zealand
Gary Clearwater M chajausq FACEM

Denys Court Me cng BAC DRCOG MRCGP

Alan Dons MB ChE MPh LEM{Med Law) MRCPaych

Andrew Stacey M8 ChB LLBHons) FCLGP FACLM

Medicolegal Consulftants to MPS - UK

Rachel Birch am MRCGP DACGG DFFF

Roger Black me tnB meni DRCOG MRCGP DFFP OFM
Dawvid Blaney ascHons) MB ¢hB Mmad EdD FRCGP FRCPES
Juhan Pedley MaMedtzw) MSe MB BS FFPHM DTM&H FFFLM

Medicolegal Consultant to MPS - ireland
Alex Reid MB BCh DCH DMH MRCGP FFOM H Dy Oce Haaith MFFLM

Medicolegal Consultant to MPS - Israg!
Mark Casson spsAcD

Medicolegal Consultants to MPS - Malaysia
Anand Bhupalan ms chaivemooy MACPILK
Datuk Or Yee Moh Chal we MLA LLB{Honst MB BCh FFFELM

Medicolegal Consultants to MPS - Singapore
Joanna Lin MB BS{Lonj MRCPUK FHKEP FHKAM FAM(Sing)
Lawrence NG M8 BS MCFPS M MaaFM OpPDemivvales) MEALUK] EDpiShangha STy

Medicolegat Consultants to MPS — South Africa
Tony Behrman mg che DoH FrFFLM
L1z Meyer me GnB MPharmivied MMedFamiedPret FFFLM
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Dental Dvision

Dental Director
Kevin Lewis B0S FDSRCSIENg) FFGDPIUK) LDSRCSEND)

Head of Dental Services (London)
Susan Willatt Ltm 805 MBA

Head of Dental Services {Leed's)
Bnan £din sps

Head of Dental Services (Scotland}

Hugh Harvey Bps FDSRCS(Edn) FOSRCPS{GIas) FFGOPUK) Op For MED

Commurications Manager
David Croser BDs LOSRCS MFGDPRK

Seror Dentolegal Advisers

Michael Clarke mrnd 8Ds DGDPUK)

Stephen Henderson um Bos

Bnan Westbury L1 4 BOS LDSRCS MGDSRCS
Susan Boynton Lum aps FFEDAUIK

Senior Dentolegal Consuitants

Alan Cohen Bos LDSACS ACIAD

Andrew Collier 1w eos

Ray Rattan mas 8bs MFGOPLK) PgDp MDE FFGDPLIK

Dentolegal Aadvisers

Jan Barnes Bos MDse

Caroline Chapmanim sos
Leonard D'Cruz LM ens LDSRCS MFGDP{UK) PGC MedEd Oip FOd
Juba Densem tim ma BDS LDSACS PgDL
James Foster LM Bos MFGDPUK
Martin Foster Bps MPH DpH3M
Richard Hartley s0s MEGDPUK) MEc
Dawvid Hartoch Bps MRGDRLK
Joseph Ingham sos

Bryan Johnson sops

Helen Kaney LLB BDS FFGOPLK) DipL®
Alasdar McKelvie L sos

Jane Menvale umeos

Simon Quelch Bos MFGDAUR 0PBS
Raw Rattan Losrcs pgip OPM

Lynn Rees (LM BDs 0GDPUK

Alan Seaton Lbs

Phul Shaw Bps LDS DGDP MGDS DPDS
Yvonne Shaw Lim BChD OPDS
Stephanie Twidale to B0S 0GDPLK

Sernior Cases Consultant
Michael Butterworth wm B80S DCDRUK MFDSIRCS) FICD MCLAD

Senior Clarms Consuitant
Lynn Walters Losacs FosRcs

Cases Consultants to DPL — Austraha
David Evans epsc Aco

John Kidd epsiai Fico

Annalene Weston aos mHL

George Lazandis sos

Cases Consuttants to DPL — Israef
Mark Casson 80s ACd

Cases Consultants to DPL — New Zeafand
Dawvid Crum pDs{Otage; DipCinDent(Otage} FICD FADI
Paul Scott eusiaas) DpCinbentOtagol FRACDS FIGD FADI

Associate Dentolegal Advisers

Bobby Broadfoot psm 8Ds MaDs MBA

George Bureau 80s MRDRGS(Eng) MCinDent FOSACS
lan Corran L. BoS DGDPIUK) MA PgCen

Jill Jagger aps banruK)

Adnan Millen abs oros

David Murphy BDS DGOPUK)

Nikotlaus Palimer aps Phb MFGDP{UK) FDSRCSERg
Sudhir Radia s.at Exem MFGEPIUK) DPDS(Bris) FEGDPLK MGDS ACSENg)
Josel Rich o&E BDS DGOPUK) FOSRCS(EN

Michael Starkey eps MFGDPUK)

Bernard Swithern sos MrGDPUK)

Barry Tiernan spentsc Ba

Martin Valt LB BChD MSL MSurgDent DConSed MFGDP
Clare Walsh g0s MML Diprus

Martin Woodhead sDS LDSRCSEM

Jane Worthington eps

Hygrenist and Therapist Advisers — Austraha
Vicki Biddie roH

RHygierust and Therapist Advisers — UK
Carole Colins pox

Manna Harms LM Bsc DDH

Shaun Howe cep boH

Risk Department

Diractor of Risk
Martin Burns escions)

Head of Meagical Risk and Underwniting
lain Barclay L8 M8 GhB MRCGP DRCOG FFELM

Medical Risk Manager
Chnstopher Godeseth amsasciHons BM BS MACS(ED)

Head of Pricing and Analysis
Barry Law pnp

Claims and Legal Services Division

Director of Clanms and Litigation
Emma Halinan LLsHons) Sesator

Head of Clairms Management
Melanie Rowles LarHons) Sobator

Head of Liugaion
George Dodd saHons

Clawms Managers
Martin Beaumont Fins: L ex
Caroline Bennett LLerons) Solcrar
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Advisers and Senior Siaif continued

Claims Managers continued
Michael Byles anstLEx

Helen Camngton saHons! Soketor
Alison Clarke saHons) Sckevor

Paula Conwell solctor

Antoinette Coltsmann (LBHons) Sascror
Frances Comerford aa soctor
James Cortin Legal Execuive

Alan Dool ac

Paul Dyer vt 8 Soletor

Warren J Forsyth LLB(Hons) Sosenor
Dawid Hards Ainst L Ex

Catherne Hibberd sagions op

Jane Gilchnst

Helen Griffith LLeHons) Sosctor

Mark Lawrence sscHons) DipLaw Soticitar
Cathenne Longstaff BajHons) Soscrar
Emma Michaels 1us seicaor

Louise Margan LeHons) Sosctor
Rosamund Oddie saHons) Diplaw LLB Banster
Angelicka Dom Paul sagons) Sobctor
Carlotta Pidgeon sa LL8 BlunsiAust) Sobctos
Jason Priston Fmst LEx

Sara Rees LLBHons) Sokeor

Dominie Stannard saHons) Scketor
Hilary Steele us o

Alison Stevenson LLeHons) Bip LP LLM
Nicola Stowe ma BSaHons!

Andrew Urbanek (LBiHons) Sokeitor
Chris Young Le(Hons) Sobator

Sohcttors

Witham Bremner macCantzn)
Tracey Ellis Batons) DpLaw Sokctor
Mark Jordan eagons) LLm
Chnstina Milne we(Hons)
Rachel Morns LeiHons)

Susan SilK LwsHans) RGN

Jill Stevens LLeHons)

Educational Services

Director of Educational Services
John Tiernan ea apanise DGOPIUK)

General Manager — Asia Pacific
Matthew O'Brien s sus comu

Fducational Services Direclorate
Dawid Blaney =sci-ons) M8 Ch8 Mmex EdD FRCGP FRCP(E)

Mark Dinwoodie maCantan MB BS DGM DRCOG DCH DFSAH FROGP TGP MMEY Duded)

John Galloway BatHons)

Paul Nisselle amma BS M HindMedLew FRACGP FACLM
Mark O'Bnen me BS DRACOG FRAGGP FACRRM AFAGHSE
Ben Simpson ssciHons)

Jule Wilson ea RGN tip HE

Chair of Educational Advisory Committee
Professor Dame Janet Husband oas Fvedsa FRCP FRCR

Semor Staff

Finance Director
Howard Kew BSciHons) PGCE

Head of Operations, West Indies and Bermuda
Nancy Boodhoo eos Fosres

Drrector of Pohcy, Communications and Marketing
Stephanie Bown LLE{Hons) MB BS MRCP DRCOG FFFLM

Director of HR and Operations
Pauline Brown

internal Audit and Comphance Officer
Simen Clutterbuck maHons)

Financial Controller
lan Cook reca Can ioMm

Director of Systerns and Change
Glen Coulish mse

General Counsel
Sarah Denton Ma@xen) MBA Salicitar
David Wheeler LLB{Hons) Sclicior

Head of Marketing
Dawvid Gray sscHons

Director of international Operations
Tm Hegan ma mMe BChir DPH PgDLaw OFPHM MFFLM

MPS Risk Solutions Limited — Marketing Director
John Lamb escHons)

Head of Commurications
Shelley McNicol BaHons)

Head of Membership
Carol Sherlock Bscirons)
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Report of the Council

The Council, which for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006
1s the Board of Directors, presents its annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2011

Busminess review and principal activity

Prncipal actnity

MPS 13 a mutual society, the function of which 1s to protect,
support and safeguard the character and interests of medical
and dental practiioners and other healthcare professionals It
1$ a non-profit-making company mited by guarantee and all
income and property must be applied solely towards its objects
as defined by MPS's Memorandum of Association

Oneof MPS's objects Is to grant Indemnity to members In respect
of claams and demands ansing from therr professional practice,
which may result In the payment of costs and damages The
Articles of Associabion set down in paragraph 40 state that ‘the
grant of an indemnity shall be entirely in the discretion of the
Council who shall have the power to impose such terms and
conditions on the grant of any indernnity as it thinks fit and may
in its absolute discretion irmit or restrict such indemnity or decline
altogether to grant the same’

in addition to the pnncipal actmty of the holding company, the
group has two principal trading substdianes, MPS Risk Solutions
Limited, and Cognitve Consulting Group Pty Limited MPS
Risk Solutions Limited 1s registered in England and s a general
Insurance company, regulated by the Financial Services Authonty,
which provides professional ndemnity, malpractice, product and
public iability cover to corporate healthcare providers Cognitive
Consulting Group Pty Limited I1s registered n Austraha and
provides education and traning tn communication skills and nsk
management to medical practitioners There I1s a further major
subsichary, MPI (London) Limited {MPI}, which 15 registered in
England and holds the mvested assets on behalf of MPS MP|
has a separate board which 1s responsible for implementing
the investment strategy approved by MPS Councl Funds are
nvested wiath third party fund managers and MPI does not
undertake any direct Investment actmvity The MPI board I1s also
responsible for overseeing the investment performance of the
third party managers

MPS has a further subsidiary, The MPS Penodical Payment
Trustee Limited, a Corporate Trustee, which has been appointed
as Trustee to the MPS Penodical Payment Trust The Trustee
accepted its first Ife into the Trust on 12 December 2011

Business purpose

MPS exists to serve its members MPS ams to ensure that
it remains a strong wiable entity to meet its current and future
commitments {0 members and that t continues to provide
much-needed services to members for years Lo come

MPS will meet the costs of assistng members subject to,
discretion, the scope of the benefits of membership and
payment of the appropnate subscnption If a member requests

assistance then MPS will pay all reasonable costs related to an
ncident where It exercises its discretion to assist These costs
may include representation at a regulatory council, assistance
with discipinary proceedings and full indemnity for damages and
costs In cases of negligence Payment will be made even though
it may be years after the incident beifore costs are incurred and
the issues are resolved

In addition, MPS has developed and continues to develop a
range of non-clinical educational courses and nsk management
assessments for members worldwide to help reduce nsk and
so improve patient care The educational courses take the form
of workshops, lectures and web-based learning and focus on
commurucation and interpersonal skills, practice systems and
processes, professionalsm and ethics

Prncipal nsks and risk management

Al businesses face nsks of one kind or another and
prudent management of the business requrres identification,
quantification, management and mitigation of these nsks, MPS
18 N exception The identification and mitigation of the key nsks
are detailed below and the process of the management of nsk is
detaled in the section on Internal Controls below

The pnncipal nsks facing MPS and therr miigation are

m  Reserving nsk

MPS prowides an indemnity to members for the costs and
darmages associated with claims of negligence and the costs
associated with other claims  For MPS to provide this support
means that at any time there are, as a result of past adverse
incidents, clams that have already been reported and
potential claims that have not yet been reported (Unreported
clams) Subject to discretion, MPS will be responsible for all
of these clams

For MPS to be responsible for paying these clams, it needs
to be able to assess the value of these claims and ensure
that it has sufficient assets to meet the expected total costs

The value of these clams 1s estimated by MPS and thergis a
nsk that the eventual payments exceed the sums estimated
as the cost of the clams The uncertainty around estimating
the value of all clams 1s greater for unreported clasms, than
for those that have been reporied For unreported clamms,
the uncertainties include the number and seventy of clams
ansing, how long it s lkely to take from the date of the
adverse Incident to the making of a claim and how many may
be large claims The uncertanties for the reported clams are
a little narrower, but still considerable

In addition to the vanation inherent In the clams, there are
also external factors, manly changes in legislation which can
have a profound impact on clam estimates MPS has seen
a nurmber of changes 1n legislation 1N the UK over the last
ten years, nearly all of which resulted in an ncrease In the
cost of clams This includes the introduction of pencdicals
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Report of the Council continued

and the reduction In discount rates The discount rate 1s the
rate used to ‘translate’ future cash flows, to be paid under
the settlement agreement, into a lump sum value in current
money terms The lower the discount rate, the higher the
value of the lump sum The discount rate in England and
Wales 1s set by the Lord Chancellor and 1s currently 2 5%
In other countnes, the rate at which future cash fiows are
discounted to a current value lump sum will be part of the
settlement negotiattons

The lkelhood of vanation In the total outcome from the
expected estimate diminishes with the increasing size of the
portfolio In addition, the geographical diversity of the portfolio
also helps to reduce the overall vanation of expected returns
A larger more diversified portfolio 1s less Iikely to be affected
across the board by a change In any subset of the portfolio

Mitigation

Maintaining a large geographically diverse portfolio of nskis a
key step in helping to reduce the vanation of outcome around
the expected mean Further steps are around ensunng the
qualty of the expected outcome In the first place and this
rehes heavily on the accuracy of data used and the qualty
of analysts in determining the expected cutcoeme MPS uses
the skill of its internal staff to determine accurate estimates
for ndwidual clams It also ensures that levels of skill are
maintained by supporting on-going training inttiatives It also
has many checks and balances in ts internal systems to
review and monitor these estmates to achieve a high degree
of consistency MPS uses the expenence of its consulting
actuary, Lane Clark & Peacock LLP, to use the internal
individual claim estimates and membership data to amve at
a statistical reserve for the likely cost of all clams

Underwnting nsk

MPS charges a subscnption based on the expected claims
of thase members paying the subscnption There 1s a nsk
that the resulting clams from those members will turn out to
exceed the expectations contained within the subscnptions
and thus MPS wili not have collected sufficient subscription
ncome

Mitigation

Again, the skill of staff and adwisers 1s important as are the
quality of internal systems In addition, MPS carefully reviews
all apphcatons and makes an assessment on those nsks that
itis willng to accept MPS also runs an internal programme to
wdentify ndwvidual members who appear to represent a higher
than normal nsk and tnes to work with them to reduce ther
nsk MPS also purchases ingurance to cover catastrophic
high clams

Market nsk

Subscnptions collected In any one year are mnvested until
they are needed {0 pay the costs ansing from the year n
which the subscrnptions were received The greater the
return MPS can achieve from investments, the less it would

thecretically need to charge in subscnptions However, the
greater the investment return that MPS s tnying to achieve
from its invested assets, the greater will be the fluctuations
In the value of those assets and thus, the greater wall be
the nsk that MPS will see a fall n the value of its assets
Such volatility In the value of MPS's assets I1s, when asset
values fall, damaging to the strength of the balance sheet
and significant volatility in investment returns makes 1t more
difficult to plan for the longer term

Mitigation

MPS has adopted a prudent wwestment strategy that
carefully identfies the levels of nsk and return acceptable in
its portfolio of assets External professional advice i1s regularly
sought and nvestment performance 1s subject to detaled
review n conunction with advisers Wherever practical, nsks
ansing from currency fluctuation and investment hquidity are
rminimised

The nsk of asset value volatility 15 addressed m a number
of ways Firstly the majonty of assets are held in bonds and
short-term money market funds, which generally have a lower
level of volatiity, secondly there 1s considerable diversity of
those assets held pnmaniy to achieve an investment return
The equity element of these assets s held In a number of
different portfolios, each investing in different geographic
areas and equites are augmented by other return seeking
assets which reduce volatiity, because returns from these
assets are less than perfectly correlated with the returns from
equities

Currency nisk

MPS holds assets to meet clams lablites The clams
labilities are in a number of different currencies If the assets
are not held in the same currency as the habilities, then there
15 a nsk that movements i exchange rates will alter the
relatwe value of assets to labities Sometimes this ought be
beneficial, sometimes not This 1s a nsk that 15 outside the
scope of MPS's business and skill, and should be removed
as much as 1s possible

Mitigation

MPS's strategy 1S to minimise currency mismatches between
its assets and lablites This 15 achieved by either holding
assels in the same currency, and to the same value, as the
habiliies or through a currency hedging programme designed
to remove currency misrmatches

Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that there will be insufficient iquid
assets avalable to meet payments when they fall due This
could either result n an INability to make the payment or the
need to terminate an Ilquid Nvestment at an iInopportune
tme, which could be costly

Mitigation
in managing lquidity nsk, MPS needs to balance the ability
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to gain an investment return on its assets and the ability to
have sufficient funds to pay lablties as they fall due MPS
operates a sophisticated system through major cleanng
banks to ensure that funds are avalable on a daily basis
when required, but otherwise are invested in pooled money
market funds In addiion to this, the invested assets include a
short-term money market portfoho with an average weighted
matunty of a maximum of 12 months, which provides
additional iquidity if needed

Credit nsk

Credit nsks the nsk that someone who owes money to MPS
will fail to pay MPS has little nsk from a fadure by members
to pay subscriptions, because if paymenis are not made,
members have no right to apply for assistance MPS’s main
credit nsk anses from either a falure of 1is insurers or from
a failure of some of the counterparties involved (in dernvative
financial Instruments as part of MPS’s Investment portfolio

Specific comment on this nsk in relation to denvative financial
instruments s provided on pages 19 and 20

Mitigation

MPS has a stated policy on the acceptable nsk profile for its
insurers This policy states the need to spread the risk across
a number of Insurers and dictates the acceptable financial
secunty rating for insurers MPS does not rewew the credit
risk of counterparties in denvative financial Instruments, but
instead agrees parameters with its investment managers as
to what secunty rating 1s acceptable for such counterparties

Interest rate / inflation nsk

MPS holds about two thirds of its invested assets i bonds
and bond prices move inversely to changes in interest rates,
thus an increase in interest rates will cause a fall in the pnce of
bonds The impact on MPS's habilites 1s more complicated

The main influence on the cost of farge clams {(in the UK) 1s
that element which reflects compensation for future costs or
losses These are manly loss of earnings and cost of future
care An estimate of the lump sum required to prowide for
these future costs s determined by reference to a discount
factor The discount factors might be expected to change
with changing interest rate expectations, but in the UK t
15 10 fact fixed, by the Lord Chancellor, who 1s expected to
complete his latest review of the discount factor dunng 2012

However, with the introduction in 2005 of penodical payments
as an alternative to lump sum or structured settlements,
compensation can be provided as a regular monthly
payment for the life of the clamant, and these payments are
to be indexed according to the retal pnce iIndex Since the
determination of the Appeal In the Thompstone case, it 15
increasingly Ikely that for settlements subject to penodicats,
the cost of future care will be subject 10 Indexation by a wage
measure and not the retail pnce index

Spearfic comment on the interest and nflation nsk in relation to
denvative financial nstruments is provided on pages 19 and 20

Mitigation

Interest rate exposure for bond assets 1s mitigated firstly
by hawng a broad range of bond holdings, with different
sensiivities to Interest rate movements and secondly by
holding a predominance of index-nked bonds, where
increasing inflaton 1s allowed for in the rebasing of the
capital value and coupon amount and additonal mitgation 1s
provided by the ability to reduce the tax charge as a result of
ndexation MPS's response to the nsk inherent in penodicals
1s firstly to ensure that it has an approprate mnvestment
make-up 1o closely match the habilities and secondly to
ensure that it has sufficient assets to allow a margin In case
of unexpectad changes in interest and inflation rates

m  Operational nsk
Any organisation will be exposed to operational nsk, that
1S to say the nsk that a fallure In its operations may incur
an additional cost Examples for MPS might include costs
assoclated with a major failure of IT systems, fraud, fire In one
of the offices or theft of its assets

Mitigation

MPS has done much to ensure that it has IT back-up systems
and contingency plans mn the event of falures or disasters,
such that there will be minimal disruption to its business It
also spends tme reviewing and testing its Internal business
systemns, to ensure that they are sufficiently robust to ensure
accuracy of data on which business decisions are based,
and to prevent fraud and theft

Financial targets

Despite the nsk mitigation identfied above, it 1Is mpossible to
eliminate nsk Consequently, MPS needs to ensure that it has the
financial rasources to cope with the remaning unmitigated risk
s0 that it can provide members with the assurance they need
that MPS will be in a position to respond to therr requests for
assistance no matter when these are made

To this end, MPS has set financial targets that will ensure that its
assels exceed the estimated value of both its reported claims
and unreported potential clams, to protect against the nsk that
clams may, for many reasons, when eveniually settled, cost
more than anticipated, this 15 known as reserving nsk  The
financial targets have been set such that even If these values
were, within certain parameters, to be higher than expected,
or, again within certan parameters, the value of Invested assets
was to be lower than expected, which 18 known as market
ngk, then MPS would still have sufficient funds to meet all of its
potential clams

Financial performance for the year

Subscription mcome has increased i the year, administration
costs were close to expectation and nvestment performance
has been positve Costs incurred 0 managing and settiing
clams were less than n 2010, however we anticipate a future
upward trend in these costs and have set appropnate reserves
accordingly
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Report of the Council continued

More detall of the financial performance for the year 1s provided
within the Finance Director's report on pages 5-5

Key markets

MPS operates in a number of different international markets

This international perspective allows many members to practise
around the werld and still enjoy the benefits of MPS membership

It also allows MPS to use its wide and diverse expenence for the
benefit of all ts members

MPS's key markets are

m Hong Kong m  Singapore

| Ireland m  South Afnca

m Malaysia m  United Kingdom

a New Zealand m  West Indies and Bermuda

In addiion, MPS may provide the benefits of membership In
many other countnes and if members intend to work abroad,
they should contact ther membership administrator to see i
continued membership of MPS 1s possible

MPS has a very strong position in all of the above key markets

Member numbers

The business aim s to grow membership in a controlled manner
without Increasing the overall nsk exposure of the organisation
The 2011 Increase in total members, Including those who don't
pay a subscription, was 4 0% {2010 2 5%)

Staff and the provision of services

Staff are a wital ingredient \n prowviding the service to members
MPS does much to ensure effective recrutment of staff,
appropnate tframng once recruted and the prowvision of
appropniate management, reward and working condiions to
help ensure retention of a skilled resource

MPS continues to invest considerable tme to help senior
staff with managing performance, to ensure consistency of
management across the organisaton and to ensure that
managers feel supported in taking the decisions necessary
for the business In addition, much has been done to improve
internal communication, so that staff are more aware of ther
contribution to the success of MPS and more aware of 1ssues
within the business

MPS was reaccredited with the Investors In People Standard in
earty 2010

Future developments
TheChief Executive’s report (see pages 2-3) refersto developments
dunng the year and touches on future developments

For the coming year, MPS's man focus will continue to be the
delivery of a high-quality, cost-effective service to members, the
delivery of education and risk management courses to members
and the contnued strengtheming of our relationship with
regulators, legislators and professional representative bodies

To this end, MPS will continue to ensure that it has the internal
resources necessary to meet demand from members and will
continue to develop its IT and operational systems to improve
therr efficiency and cost effectiveness

Donations

Chartable donations made ty MPS dunng the year amounted to
£10,441 {2010 £10,188) Donations in 2011 were all n favour of
the Chanties Aild Foundation in lieu of fees waived by a Director
of MP! {London} Limited No political donations were made
dunng the year (2010 Enil}

Employees

Duning the year MPS continued to provide employees with
relevant information and seek their views on matters of common
concern through the Staff Consultatve Group, staff bnefings
and through line managers Prionty 1S given to ensurng that
employees are aware of all significant matters affecting MPS's
trading position and of any significant orgarisational changes
MPS also seeks regular feedback from its employees and a
number of different mechanisms exist for this, including a regular
company-wide staff survey

In 2005, MPS decided to adapt the existing Staff Consultative
Group in order to comply with the requirements of the Information
and Consultation of Employees Regulations 2005

It 1s the policy of MPS to support the employment of disabled
persons where possible, both in recrutment and by retention
of employees who become disabled whilst in the employment
of MPS, as well as generally through training and career
development

Members of the Council

The names of the members of the Council of MPS who served
dunng the year are set out on page 7

Corporate Governance

The Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty require listed
companies to apply the Main Pnnciples of the UK Corporate
Governance Code (formerly the Combined Code) prepared by
the Financial Reporting Council and report 10 their shareholders
on how they have done so Although not hsted, MPS complies
with the UK Corporate Governance Code where it 1 considered
proportionate and refevant to its business and constitution The
following 1s, where relevant, a statement in accordance with the
Code

Counci

The Counci, which 1s the Board of Dirsctors of MPS, currently
consists of a non-executive Chairman, a Chief Executve, one
further executve member and eleven other non-executive
members MPS's constitution requires that the maponty of
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Council members are doctors or dentists and that the Chairman
1S a doctor or dentist

Of the non-executives {iIncluding the Chairman) at the year end,
eight are doctors or dentists and four are not With the exception
of the Chairman, the non-executives are considered to be
independent The four non-executives who are not a doctor or
dentist have no financial interest in MPS other than ther fees as
members of the Council The eight non-executives who are a
doctor or dentist recewve fees as members of the Council and all
had personal membership with MPS Ther personal membership
is not felt sufficient to compromise ther independence

MPS continues to review the transparency of the independence
of its non-executive drectors and to prowide approprate
guidelines for all directors on therr ethical conduct as a director
of MPS To this end, MPS introduced in 2008, for MPS and its
subsidiary boards, a register of interests and also published
internally a Code of Ethical Conduct for all staff, which applies
equally to members of the Council

MPS has separate posts of Charman and Chief Executive
to differentiate the running of the Council from the executive
responsibiity for the runming of the business The Counci
considers that the non-executive members of the Gouncil as a
group are of a sufficient calitbre and number to bring strength and
independence to the Council and does not propose to nominate
any one non-executive to be a senior iIndependent member of
the Council In stating this, the Council recognises that this s not
m accordance with the relevant prowision of the UK Corporate
Governance Code

Al Councih members, except for the Chiet Executve and the
Chairman of Dental Protection Limited, are subject to election by
members at the first opportunity after therr appointment by the
Councit and to re-election {excepting the Chief Executive and
the Charrman of Dental Protection Limited) at general meetings
at least every three years The Chief Executive 1s appointed by
the Council and can be removed by the Council The Council
recognises that not subjecting the Chief Executive to re-election
IS a departure from the relevant section of the UK Corporate
Govermance Code, but beleves that it does not compromise
the independence or integnty of the Council The Charman of
Dental Protection Limited 1s a member of the Counclil ex officio,
and 15 elecied to the post by the Board of Dental Protection
Limited Dwectors of Dental Protection Limited are elected by the
shareholder of the company, which 1s MPS and thus the Councll
of MPS has the ability to appoint and remove directors of Dental
Protection Limited Non-executive members of the Council are
Imited to an exght-year term

The Council met formally eight times duning the year {eight times
N 2010} In addition to these regular meetings, the Council also
devoted the better part of a day for an additonal meeting to
consider and review the organsation's business objectives and
strategy The attendance record of members of the Counci at
the eight meetings s shown in the table below

Member of Appointed Meetings Attended
Council or Retired 2011 2010
Frank Attwood 8
Keith Bradiey
Trevor Burke

lan Croxford
MNicholas Davies
Mark Dawvts
Yasmin Drabu
Mary Fawvier
Patnck Forbes

Ta Hassan

Leela Kapila
Simon Kayll
Kay-Tee Khaw
Kevin Lewis

Tony Mason
Elizabeth vallance
Rrchard Youell

Appointed on 8 June 2010

~|mj{oo|n|w|m|

Appointed 8 June 2011

Retired 8 June 2011

cojw| ~| |

Appainted 8 June 2011

Retired 31 December 2011

bi~l@| N Rlojs{| &~ N[Ol@ @O ©0

ojco|m[m] |

Retired 8 June 2011

The Councll has a schedule of matters specifically reserved
to it for deciion, ncluding strategy, financial policy and
major acqusitions and disposals  All Councll members have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
and procedures exist for any member of the Council to take
independent adwice at MPS's expense

Non-executive members of the Council met once dunng the
year without the executive members and have the provision to
meet without the executive at any ime that such a meeting may
be requred There Is also the provision for the non-executive
members to meet without the Charman and executive If they
wish — this was not thought necessary dunng 2011

Sub-commuttees of the Counci

The Council has & Nominations, Remuneration, Audit and Risk
and Ethical Conduct Committee, the members of which are
Iisted on page 7

The Nominations Committee 18 chared by the Charman of the
Councll and keeps under review the composition of the Council
and makes recommendations concerning all new appointments
of non-executive members

The Remuneration Committee s chaired by the Charrman of the
Councll and 1s responsible for making recommendations to the
Council concerning matters relating to remuneration policy See
Remuneration Report below

The Audit and Risk Committee s chaired by a nen-executve
member of the Counci, Frank Attwood, {a former audit partner
of an international firm of Chartered Accountants) and met twice
In the year MPS's external auditors, Charman, Chief Executive,
Finance Diector, Financial Controller and Intermal Audit and
Compliance Officer also attend the meetings and the Commitiee
has an opportunity to meet the external auditors without
management present Other senior managers attend for specific
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Report of the Council continued

agenda tems as required The Audit and Risk Commitiee reviews
the adequacy and effectrveness of nsk management and control
systems and reviews the scope and results of the external audit,
its cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the
auditors It also reviews, prior to publication, the annual financial
staiements and the other information included in the Annual
Report The Audit and Risk Commuttee also meets annually with,
and reviews the work of, the independent consulting actuanes

The attendance record of members of the Audit and Risk
Commuttee 1s shown in the table below The Committee meets In
March and November

Member of the Audit  Appointed/ Meetings Attended
and Risk Committee  Retired 2011 2010
Frank Attwood 2 2

¥eith Bradley 2 2

lan Croxford 2 2

Leela Kapia Retired 8 June 2011 1 2
Elzabeth Vallance 1 2

The Audit and Risk Committee 1s responsible for ensunng the
continued iIndependence of the external auditors The Committee
has a written policy on this, which includes requinng the auditors
to make a statement on therr continued independence, placing
Imits on the amount of non-audit work undertaken by the
auditors and having a policy covering the commissioning of non-
audit services from the auditors

The Ethical Conduct Committee was formed in 2011 and met
once in the year The Commitiee 1s responsible for establishing
and mantaining an Ethical Code for MPS and its subsidianes
The Committee acts as a point of reference for legal and ethical
1Issues, provides a forum to which unethical or unlawful behaviour
can be reported and monitors, reviews and maintans MPS's anti
corruption policies and procedures The Committee 1s chaired by
a non-executive member of the Council, Ehzabeth Vallance, and
the other Council members are ksted on page 7

Several members of the Council are members of the Beard of MPI
(London) Limited, which manages MPS's mnvestment portfolio,
and of the Board of MPS Risk Sclutions Limited, which provides
general msurance contracts to corporate healthcare providers
Both Boards are chared by the Charrman of the Council and the
other Council members are listed on page 7

The Role of the Council

The Council's pnncipal focus 1s the overall strategic direction,
development and control of the MPS group I addition, it 1s also
ultimately responsible for the exercising of discretion in response
to requests for assistance In practice, this 1s delegated on a daily
basis to the executive management and employees However,
the Council 1s speaifically involved in exercising discretion related
to potentially controversial, expenswe or unusual requests for
assistance

In support of the overall strategy, the Council approves the
group’s values, strategic plans, annual budget and overall system
of nsk identification, management and internal controls The
Counail also has control of the group's operating and finarcial
periormance

The Council agress the group's corporate governance framework,
as part of which it has empowered the man management
commitiee, the Executve Committee, who are responsible for
day to day operations

The roles of the Charrman and Chief Executive are documented
and the Charman, together with the Chief Executive and the
Secretary, are responsible for ensuring that the Council i1s kept
fully iInformed and 1s consulted on 1ssues that are reserved to it
and that decisions are made In a tmely manner

Newly appomnted members of the Council are given an induction
appropnate to therr level of previous expenence

Board Evaluation

The Council undertakes an annual evaluaton of its
performance based upon a questionnaire and the invitation
for members of the Council to speak to the Chairman on
performance issues For the 2011 performance review,
external consultants were employed to carry out an evaluation
of the Council and its sub-committees using very detalled
questionnaires The results of the 2011 evaluation have been
reported to the Council by the Charrman and resulting actions
were approved by the Council

internai Control

The Council has overall responsibiity for MPS's system of
internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness whilst the
role of management i1s to implement the Council’s polkicias on
nsk and contral The systemn is designed to manage, rather than
eliminate, the nsk of falure to achieve the business objectives
In pursung these objectives, Internal controls can only provide
reasonable and not absolule assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

There 15 a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and
managing the significant nsks faced by MPS in line with the
UK Corperate Governance Code and the recommendations in
the onginal and updated Turnbull report This has been in place
for the full financial year and up to the date of approval of the
Annual Report

The process involves the undertaking of regular reviews
at departmental and corporate level From these reviews,
management tdentifies the key nsks, and determines thewr
likely significance based on the probatility of the nsk occurring
and its hkely impact on MPS if it were to do so Management
then determines what action can cost-effectively be taken
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The Councl has delegated the function of monitonng the
effectiveness of the system of internal coniro! and of the nsk
management process to the Audit and Risk Committee The
Chairman of the Audit and Risk Commuttee reports cutcomes of
its meetings 1o the Council and the Council receives the minutes
of allits meetings In fulfiling its responsibilities to the Council, the
Audit and Risk Committee

m Discusses with the external auditors therr audit approach,
and agrees any particular aspect of internal contral or nsk
management 1o be reviewed by them beyond therr statutory
responsibilities

m Discusses with independent consulting actuanes ther
approach to statstical reserving of reported clams and
potential claims that have yet to be reported

m Considers the results of the external auditors’ work with
them and with management

m Intiates as necessary and considers reports  from
management on systems of internal control and on the
effectiveness of nsk management

w Reports the results of s work, with any necessary
recommendations, to the Council and ensures that actions
required by the Council are mplemented One such report 15
made at the year-end before producing this statement

MPS has an Internal Audit team whose responsibilities include
providing assurance over a wide range of issues including
financial, corporate and operational nsks Assurance I1s provided
through reporting and the provision of opinion following a range
of moritering activies, discussion and review The Internal Audit
function 15 Independent from all operational departments and
its work 1s overseen and coordinated by the Internal Audit and
Compliance Officer, who also warks closely with the external
auditors and attends the Audit and Risk Committee meetings The
Audit and Risk Commuittee 1s responsible for montonng and
reviewing the work of the Internal Audit team The Audit and Risk
Committee receves summanes of all internal audit reports, 1s
involved In approving the annual internal audit plan and 1s able
ta question the Internal Audit and Compliance Officer about his
work at each commitiee meeting

Council recognises the need to regularly review and monitor the
appropnateness of its approach to overseeing the systems of
nsk management and control operated at MPS  Following tts
most recent such review, Council decided to revise its approach
in hght of the economic climate of the last three years, the
revisions to corporate governance standards (as set out in the
UK Carporate Governance Code 2010), and the recent release
of the preliminary report of the Sharman Inquiry (*Going Concern
and Liquichty Fisks™) In February 2012, Council reviewed and
approved a Terms of Reference for an Audit and Risk Committee,
which will take on the current roles of the Audit Committee but

with a broader scopea that allows for specific review of strategic
nsk and key control structures through an additional focussed
meeting

Remuneration report

The Remuneration Committee 1s responsible for recommending
to the Counctl, fees for members of the Council, Committees and
directors of subsidanes as well as deciding the remuneration
of senior staff and recewving recommendations from the Chief
Executive for the remuneration of other employees In framing its
policy, the Remuneration Committee ams to attract and retain
senior staff to run MPS successfully without making excessive
payments Since 2008 MPS has operated an incentve schame
payng a modest reward to the eleven most senior staff (excluding
the Chief Executive) based on performance of a range of critena
It remains that the non-executve members of the Council do
not receive any incentive or performance-relaied remuneration
Because MPS s not a listed company, this report 1s not required
to comply with the rules on Remuneration Reports

Detals of the Chief Executive’s and non-executive Council
Members® remuneration are included at note 6 to the accounts

Relations with members

The provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code relate to
communication by companies with therr shareholders and thus
some of the detalls do not apply to the different relationship that
MPS has with its members However, the general tenor of the
provisions I1s applicable to MPS and MPS values its dialogue with
members The Council also uses the Annual General Mesting
to communicate financial performance with members and
encourages ther participation Members of the Audit and Fisk,
Nommations, Remuneration and Ethical Conduct committees
will be present at the Annual General Meeting to respond to any
relevant questions if necessary

The notice for the Annual General Meeting 1s sent to members at
least 20 working days before the meeting date

Denvative financial instruments

Dunng the year MPS’s investment managers held dervatve
financial instruments to enhance investment returns  The net
recognised gans and lesses resuling from holding these
contracts are included in note 4 under other Investment income
These mstruments were held to take advantage of short-term
changes i bond market prnices Dunng ihe year this was
achieved by entenng into a number of contracts, which involve
the purchase or sale of an underlying asset at a price fixed today
for delivery at some date in the future

Risk charactenstics of dervative financial instruments

Interest rate nsk

MPS's denvatives are sensitive to Interest rate movements
s0 1t 1s necessary to determine the interest rate nsk that such
contracts will be exposed to This 1S done by comparing the nsk
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of the underlying asset aganst the nsk of the denvative using a
formula to determine the number of futures contracts that need
to be held

Credit Risk

Credt nsk encompasses al forms of counterparty risk MPS
manages this nsk through its iInvestment policy, which sets out
the type and qualty of investments that can be held and the
maximum exposure to any parbcular iInvestment Credit sk 1s
further managed by all such denvative contracts being of short
term duration

Going concern

Members of the Council consider that MPS has adeqguate
rasources to continue In operation for the foreseeable future and
that it s therefore appropnate to adopt the going concern basis in
prepanng the financial statements Members of the Council have
satisfied themselves that MPS 1sin a sound financial position

In forming this view, Members of the Council have considered
the guidance set out In the Financial Reporting Council's report
- Update for Audit Committees i1ssues ansing from current
economic conditions — published in November 2010

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP, having expressed therr wiflingness
to continue In office, will be deemed reappointed for the next
financial year in accordance with section 487(2) of the Compartes
Act 2008 unless the company recewves notice under section
488(1) of the Companies Act 2006

Statement of the Council's responsibthity for the Financial
Statements

The Councilis responsible for prepanng the Report of the Council
and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requres the Council to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the Council
has elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with Unted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
{United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable laws}
Under company law the Council must not approve the financial
statermenis unless they are satsfied that they gwve a true and
far view of the state of affarrs of the group and parent company
and the net contnbution available to meet future liabiities and
charges of the company and group for that penod

In prepanng these financial statements, the Council are required to

m  select suitabls accounting policies and then apply them
consistently,

m make judgments and accounting estimates that are
reascnable and prudent,

m state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed
and explaned in the financial statements,

| prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1 mappropriate to presume that the company will
continue In business

The Council 1s responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explan the company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the Comparnes Act
2006 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets
of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties

In so far as each Council member s aware

| thereis no relevant audit information of which the company's
auditors are unaware, and

m the Council members have taken all steps that they ought to
have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditors are aware of
that iInformation

The Counclil 1s responsible for the mantenance and mntegnty
of the corporate and financial nformation included on the
company's website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other junsdictions

Approval

This report was approved by the Council on 11 Aprl 2012 and
signed on its behalf by z W

David Wheeler

Company Secretary

33 Cavendish Square, London, W1G 0PS
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Independent Auditor's report to the members
of the Medical Protection Society Limited

We have audied the financial statements of The Medical
Protection Society Limited for the year ended 31 December
2011 which comprnises the consolidated income and expenditure
account, the consohdated statement of total recognised gans
and losses, the consolidated note of histoncal cost income and
expenditure, the consoldated and company balance sheets,
the consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes
The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in ther
preparation 1s applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice)

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a
body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 Our avdit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the company's members those matters we are required
to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose
To the fullest extent permiited by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibiity to anyone other than the company and
the company’s members as a body, for cur audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of the Council and auditor

As explared more fuly in the Councl's Responsibiites
Statement set out on page 20, the Council i1s responsible
for the preparation of the financial statemenis and for being
satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1s
to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB’s) Ethical Standards
for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s
prowided on the APB's website at www frc org uk/apb/scope/
prvate cfm

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinon the financial statements

® gve a true and far view of the state of the group's and the
parent company’s affars as at 31 December 2011 and of the
net contnbution avatlable to meet future labibties and charges
of the group for the year then ended,

m have been properly prepared in accordance with Urited
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

m have been prepared in accordance wth the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

in our opmion the information given in the Report of Councl for
the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared
15 consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you If,
IN our opINIonN

®m adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been receved from branches not visited by us, or

B8 the parent company financial statements are not In agreement
with the accounting records and returns, or

B certan disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law
are not made, or

m we have not receved all the information and explanations we
requre for our audit

C-v-_.e. THN-“-OQ < \—3 .

Andrew Wood

Senior Statutory Auditor

for and on behalf of Grant Thornton UK LLP,
Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants
Leeds

11 Apnl 2012
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Income. continuing operations
Members' subscnptions and other iIncome 318,339 296,644
Expenditure
16 Clams costs and assoctated legal costs {including costs of insurance) 189,777 258,701
Insurance recovenes 7,181 4,929
16 Advisory costs and associated legal costs 51,748 52,651
3a Education, publications ang external relations 8,566 7.853
3b Admiristration expenses 18,539 17,049
10 Imparment of fixed assets 271 -
3c Loss on exchange movements 32,472 226
308,554 331,551
Excess/{deficit) of members’ subscriptions and other income
over expendrture: continumng operations 9,785 {34,907)
Income from investments 30,438 28,505
8 Other fimance ncome 943 580
Realised (losses)/gains from disposal of investments (3,332) 4,207
Contnbution from ordinary activities before taxation 37,834 {1,615}
5a Tax credit/{charge) on investment income and gans 1,641 {7,897}
18 Net contnbution for the year availlable to meet future habilities and charges 39,475 {9,512}
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Net contnbution for the financial year 39475 (9.512)
17 Surplus on revaluation of Investments 91,397 121,993
17 Impairment of fixed assets (178} -
8 Actuanal (losses)/gains on defined benefit pension scheme (4,262) 3,175
5a Tax charge on investment gans (18,217) (10,018}
Total recognised gains 108,215 105,638
NOTE OF HISTORICAL COST INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
2011 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
Reported net contnbution before tax 37,834 (1,615)
17 Realisation of valuation gains of previous years 27,602 34,328
Difference between a histonical cost depreciation charge and the actual
depreciation charge of ihe year calculated on the revalued amount 13 13
Histoncal cost net contnbution before tax 65,449 32,724
Histoncal cost net contnbution after tax 48,873 14,809
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Financial statements centinued

CONSOLIDATED AND COMPANY BALANCE SHEETS
At 31 December 2011

201 2010 2011 2010
Group Group  Company Company
Notes £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000
Fixed assets
g Intangible assets - - 360 378
10 Jangible assets 4,966 8,896 4,929 8,894
11 Investments 1,677,431 1,527,192 1,011,050 921,010
1,682,397 1,536,088 1,016,339 930,282
Current assets
13 Assets held for resale 3,750 - 3,750 -
14 Debtors — due within one year 11,157 12,585 96,033 108,254
14 — due after one year 21,857 29,605 21,857 29,605
Bank deposit accounts 85,804 79,950 10,609 12,676
Cash at bank and in hand 8,445 3,636 8,223 3,410
131,013 125,776 140,472 153,845
15 Creditors amounts falling due within one ysar (64,710} {54,432) {51,173} {44,362)
Net current assets 66,303 71,344 89,299 109,583
Total assets less current liabiities 1,748,700 1,607,432 1,105,638 1,039,865
16 Provision for hatilities (623,246) (592,126) {609,605) {682,238)
Net assets excluding pension asset 1,125,454 1,015,306 496,033 457 627
8 Pension asset 1,515 3,448 1,515 3,448
Net assets 1,126,969 1,018,754 497,548 461,075
Accumulated funds
17 Revaluation reserve 267,370 203,753 - 178
17 Income and expenditure 859,599 815,001 497,548 460,897
18 Funds avarlable to meet future habilities and charges 1,126,969 1,018,754 497,548 461,075
, /~
Nicholas Davies bbl

Charman of the Council

The Medical Proteciton Society Limited
Registered Company No 36142
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
Notes £'000 £'000
19 Net cash inflow from operating actvities 84,436 82,576
20 Returns on Investment and servicing of finance 30,438 28,505
Taxation {12,285) {9,683)
Acquisition of sutysidiary company {360) {308)
21 Capital expenditure and financial investment (75,848) (111,175}
26,381 (10,083)

Net cash (outflow)infiow from management of iquid resources
{compnsing bank deposits and investment deposits) {21,572) 9,646
Increase/{decrease) in cash in the penod 4,809 (437)
Analysis of changes in net funds At Cash flow At
1/1/2011 movement  31/12/2011
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 3,636 4,809 8,445
Bank depeosit accounts 79,950 5,854 85,804
Cash with invesiment managers 11,805 15,718 27,523
Net funds 95,391 26,381 121,772
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net funds 2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Increase/{decrease) in cash 4,809 {437)
Cash flow from increase/{decrease} In net iquid resources 21,572 (2,648)
26,381 {10,083}
Net funds at 1 January 95,391 105,474
Net funds at 31 December 121,772 95,391
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Notes to the accounts

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements are prepared In accordance with applicable accounting standards and MPS's constitution

Convention

The financial statements include mvestments and freehold property at valuation but in all other respects have been prepared
In accordance with the histonical cost convention The prnincipal accounting policies adopted by MPS within that convention
are set out below

Accounting policies

Consohdation

The Group financial statements compnse a consolidation of the financial statements of the parent company (the “Company”) and
all its subsidiary undertakings {together, the “Group”) as at 31 December and as identified in note 12 As a consolidated income
and expenditure account 1s published, a separate ncome and expenditure account for the parent company 1s omitted from the
group financial statements by virtue of Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 The parent company ret contribution for the
year to 31 December 2011 was a surplus of £40 9m, as shown in note 17

Subscnptions

Subscription income comprises amounts recewable during the year, apportioned to accounting perods based on actual
membership penods and stated at the fair value of the consideration receivable 1tis recognised whean the Company has performed
its obligation to provide a period of membership, which allows members to seek assistance for incidents occurnng duning that
penod, and 1 exchange obtained the nght to consideration Income 15 not defarred beyend the end of penod of membership, as
future benefits ansing from that period of membership will be subject to Counctl exercising its discretion to providse such benefits

No geographical analysis of subscnption iIncome 15 shown because, in the opinion of the Council, it would be senously prejudicial
for the Group to do so

intangible fixed assets and amortisation

Intangible fixed assets are included at cost Amortisation 1s provided evenly on the cost of Intangible fixed assets, to write them
down to nil value over ther expected useful ives Where there 1s evidence of mparrment, ntangible assets are wrtten down to
ther current valuation, with any such write down being charged to operating profits

The annual amortisation rate used 13

Copynghts — 4 5% per annum

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

All freehoeld land and buldings are included at valuation Valuations are kept up-to-date Other tangible fixed assets are included
at cost Depreciation 1s provided evenly on the cost {or valuation where appropnate) of tangible fixed assets, to wnte them down
to their estmated restdual values over their expected useful ives Where there 1s evidence of impairment, fixed assets are wntten
down to recoverable amounts Any such write down would be charged to cperating profit unless it was a reversal of a past
revaluation surplus in which case It would be taken to the statement of total recognised gams and losses No deprecitation i1s
provided on freehold land

The principal rates used for other assets are

Freehold buldings = 2% per annum
Leasehold property - over life of leases
Furniture and fittings ~ ~ 5% per annum
Cffice equipment = 15% per annum
Computers — 33 3% per annum
Motor vehicles - 20% per annum

Translation of foreign currency transactions

income and expenditure in foreign currencies are translated to ther sterling equivalent at the rate rulng at the transaction date
Monetary assets and labilities appeanng in the balance sheet are translated at the rate of exchange ruling at 31 December or
at a rate fixed in advance by way of a forward exchange contract Any gains or losses are taken to the Income and expenditure
accountt, except for those ansing from international equities held at valuation, which are taken to the statement of totai recognised
gans and losses

interest recevable and dividends

Interest recevable 1s brought into account on an accruals basis As MPS's equity investments are in pooled funds and urit trusts,
income s renvested rather than distnbuted Such ncome 13 therefore Included within unrealised gains on investments rather than
beng recorded in the accounts as dividend income
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g Investments

Listed mvestments {which include cash held by the investment managers awaiting investment) are incfuded in the balance sheet
at market valuation The net surplus or deficit on revaluation 1s credted or charged to the revaluation reserve In accordance with
FRS3, on disposal the proceeds are compared with the carrying value and the gan or loss credited or charged to the income and
expenditure account

Unlisted investments are included in the balance sheet at the lower of therr sterling cost or net asset value

Investments in subsiciaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment where necessary to reduce book value to recoverable
amount Cost s purchase prce including acquisition expenses, but excluding any payment for accrued interest or fixed dmdend
entitlerment

Derwvative financial mstruments
The Group's investment managers are permitted to hold denvative financial instruments to enhance nvestment returns Denvatives
are held at cost and as such are not farr valued through the income and expenditure account

Realised gains and losses ansing as a result of holding dernvatives are taken directly to the income and expenditure account

Costs and damages for claims of negligence

Provision is made for estimated future costs and damages, legal costs and clams handling costs expected to anse from clams
that have been notified to MPS by 31 December in respect of which the Councit has exercised or 1s expected to exercise its
discretion to provide Indemnity The estimate of these costs 1s stated beiore deducting estimated recovenes from insurers, which
are disclosed separately and are recognised only when 1t 1 virtually certain that reimbursement will be recerved

The discounted future settlement values are deemed to be the best estimate of these costs

With the exception of clams ansing from policies wntten by MPS Risk Solutions Limited, no provision 1s made for the potential
clams that may anse from inctdents that occurred before 31 December but had not been reported to MPS at that date These
potential claims do not constitute a contingent hability as recognition of these labilities 1s dependent on the exercise of discretion
by the Councll, there 1s no constructive or legat obligation to recognise them until such discretion 1s exercised

Although FRS12 reguires that the unwinding of the discount within a provision be shown separately, it 1s not considered practical
for these provisions, due to the complexities of the many actuanial calculations involved

Cosls related to ali other claims

Provision 1s made at discounted future settlement values for estimated future costs, Including handiing costs, of these claims that have
been notified to MPS by 31 December in respect of which the Council has exercised or s expected to exercise its discretion to provide
assistance

The discounted future settiement values are deemed to be the best estimate of these costs

No prowision 1s made for the potential claims that may anse from incidents that occurred before 31 December but had not been
reported to MPS at that date as they do not constitute a contingent hability Recognition of these liabilities s dependent on
the exercise of discreton by the Counctl, there 1s no constructive or legal obhgation to recogmise them until such discretion 1s
exercised

Although FR312 requires that the unwinding of the discount withun a prowision be shown separately, it 1s not considered practical
for these provisions, due to the complexities of the many actuanal calculations involved

Tax

Provision 1s made in the financial statements for tax on investment and trading Nncome receved and receivable in the year,
revaluation gains and losses recognised in respect of UK and International bonds and on other nvestments disposed of dunng
the year

No deferred tax provision is reguired to be reflected in the financial statements Whilst there 1s a tming difference ansing between the
accounting and taxation treatment of certain non-monetary assets, in accordance with FRS19, deferred tax 1s not provided on timing
differences ansing from the revaluation of non-monetary assets, where there 1s no binding agreemenit to sell these assets at the balance
sheet date

Deferred tax 1s measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the perods when the trming differences are expected to
reverse, based on tax rates and law enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets and labilties
are not discounted

Where law or accounting standards require gains and losses to be recogrised in the statement of total recognised gamns and
losses, the related taxation 1s also taken directly o the statement of total recogrused gans and losses 1n due course
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Notes 1o the accounts continued

21

3b

3c

Pernsians

MPS operates a defined benefit pension scheme The assets of the scheme are invested and managed independently of MPS's
finances The pension scheme assets are measured using market values Pension scheme habiliies are measured using the
projected unit actuaral method and are discounted at the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent
term and currency to the liabiity Any increase m the present value of labiittes within MPS's defined benefit scheme expected
to arise from employee service in the period 1s charged to operating profit The expected return on the scheme’s assets and the
Increase dunng the penod in the present values of the scheme's habilities arising from the passage of time are included m other
finance ncome Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in the conschidated statement of total recogrised gans and losses

Pension scheme surpluses, to the extent they are considered recoverable, or deficits are recogrused in full on the face of the
balance sheet

Further information on the structure of the defined benefit scheme 1s contaimed within note 8 to these accounts

Operating lease agreements
Leases where substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the group are treated as operating
leases Rentals under operatng leases are charged against profits on a straight-ine basis over the penod of the lease
Operating lease incentives are recognised, on a straight-iine basis, as a reduction of the rental expense over the shorter of the
lease term and the period to the first rent review where market rentals will be payable
Education, publications and external relations
Included under this classification are costs associated with developing and delivering education and nsk management services
to members with the arm of reducing nsk, and haising with regulators, legislators and professional representative bodies around
the world on behalf of members and the wider professions, on matters relevant to MPS and its members
2011 2010
Administration expenses £'000 £'000
Included under this classification are
Operating lease rentals - Land and buldings 2,731 2,521
- Motor vehicles 150 115
- Office equipment 83 54
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets - 5
Depreciation of fixed assets 1,861 1,580
Auditors’ remuneration
Services to the Company and its subsidiares
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of the annual financial statements 70 75
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates for other serices
Audit of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 12 13
Other services - Taxation comphance and advice 62 56
~ Accounting advice 2 6
Services to the Company’s associated pension scheme
Audit of the financial statements of the Scheme pursuant to legislation 5 4
Exchange movements

The majornity of the losses on exchange movements relate 1o the restatement of international bonds and cash assets held to
match mternational labilities, particutarly in South Afnca These losses are substantially offset by a corresponding decrease n
international clam habilities, which are included in costs within the increase in the overall clams prowsions (note 16)

THE MEDICAL PROTEGTION SOCIETY UMITED - ANNUAL REPORT & ACCOUNTS




2011 2010

4 Net income from investments £'000 £'000
Bond and giit interest 28,174 25,811
Bank interest 1,052 1,160
Other investment iIncome 1,212 1,534

30,438 28,505

Other investment income includes realised gains and losses ansing from dervative financial instruments, which are discussed in
more detall in the Report of the Council on pagses 19-20

As noted in 2(f}, dwvidend income from MPS's equity Investments 1s not distnbuted but s reinvested and included in unrealised
gamns on investments rather than as nvestment income

5a Tax on income and gains from investments

2011 2010
Tax on income and gains included in the income and expenditure account for the year £000 £:000
UK corporation tax
Current tax on income and {losses)/gains for the year at 26% (2010 28%) {1,514) 8,693
Adjustment in respect of prior years (139) 811)
Double taxation rehef (7) (3)
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year {see note 5b) {1,660) 7.879
Foreign tax
Current tax on income for the year 19 18
Tax on investment income and {losses)/gains in the
income and expenditure account (1,641) 7,897
Tax on other gains included in the statement of
total recognised gains and losses for the year
UK corporation tax
Current tax charge on gains for the year at 26% (2010 28%) 18,217 10,018
Tax on other gains included i1n the statement of
total recognised gains and losses for the year 18,217 10,018
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Nctes 1o the accounts continued

5b Factors affecting tax charge for the year

5c

Current tax reconcihation

Differences between the current tax charge for the penod and the expected tax 2011 2010
charge based on the current rate of 26% (2010 28%;} are explaned below £'000 £'000
Contrbution before tax per accounts 37,834 (1,615)
Nan-taxable contnbution {42,812) 25,005
Income and net (losses)/gains from investments included

n the ncome and expenditure account for the year (4,978) 23,390
Inceme and net (losses)/gains from nvestments multipled

by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2010 28%) (1,294) 6,549
Effects of

Depreciation in {deficit)/excess of capital allowances (12) 3
Non-taxable dividend income (328) (160}
Realised investment Income taxed as gans - 2,059
Double tax relief {7 @
Adjustment in respect of prior years {139) {811)
Loss carry back for MPS Risk Solutions Limited - 239
QOther short term timing differences 4 3
Change In tax rate (28) -
Macquane partnership income 130 -
Royalty withholding tax 14 -
Current tax (credit)/charge for the year (1,660) 7,879

The non-taxable contribution above 1s the (surplus)/deficit of members’ subscnption iIncome over related expenditure, which, due

to MPS's mutual status, 1s not subyect to corporation tax

Unprovided deferred taxation

A £17 0 milion (2010 £24 9 million} tax charge would arse should MPS's equity investments be sold at the market values at

which they are included in the balance sheet

2011 2010

Emoluments of members of the Council £'000 £'000

Aggregate amount of emcluments paid to members of the Council (including execuiive members) 1,036 1,008

Charrman 53 52
Highest pard member of the Council

Chief Executive - standard emoluments and taxable benefits 268 261

—bonus 3N 3

- accrued annual defined benefit pension nghis 9 7

— employer contnbutions to defined contnbution pension scheme 25 25

Dunng 2011 there were 3 (2010 3) executive members of the Council who were members of MPS's defined benefit pension

scheme, details of which are set out In note 8
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Emoluments of members of the Council (continued)

The standard remuneration for all non-executive members of the Councd (other than the Chairman) was £20,485 (2010 £19,985)
Anncrease of £500 per annum was implemented on 1 March 2011 The {following members of the Council, who were members
of other Boards and Commuttees, receved addiional remuneration as detalled below

Council Memiber Additional Remuneration (£) Council Member Additional Remuneration (£)
Frank Attwood 15,870 Patnick Forbes 2,117
Keith Bradley 2,480 Ta) Hassan 9,540
Trevor Burke 20,940 Leela Kapila 2,502
lan Croxford 2,480 Yasmin Drabu 5,082
Mark Davis 2,480 Elzabeth Vallance 2,480
Mary Favier 2,117 Richard Youell 1,420

In additton, and as stated in the Report of the Council on page 17, 8 members of the Council had personal membership of
MPS

Employees

The average number of people employed by the Group and the Company during the year was 483 (2010 427}

Costs in respect of these employees were 2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Wages and salanes 22,384 19,547
Social secunty costs 2,262 1,991
Pension costs 3,567 3,095
28,213 24,633

Pensions

MPS operates a funded defined benefit pension scheme, The MPS Pension Scheme The scheme funds are administered by
Trustees and are independent of MPS's finances Contributions are paid to the scheme in accordance with the Schedule of
Contnbutions agreed between the Trustees and MPS

The last full actuanal valuation as at 31 December 2008 was updated to the accounting date by an independent qualified
actuary in accordance with FRS17 As required by FRS17, the value of the defined benefit liabilities has been measured using
the projected umt method

A further full actuanal valuation 1s being camed out as at 31 December 2011

The following tables set out the key FRS17 assumptions used for the scheme The tables also set out, as at the accounting date,
the far values of the assets, analysed by asset class, the present value of the scheme liabilities and the resulting pension surplus
FRS17 requires that this surplus be shown as “Pension asset” on the face of the balance sheet

Principal actuarial assumptions. At 31/12/2011 AL 31/12/2010

% pa % pa
Pnce inflation 33 37
Discount rate 4.8 54
Pension increases {LP1 5%) 32 35
Pension increases {LPI 3%) 25 27
Salary growth 4.8 52
Expected return on assets at start of year 6.4 67

On the basis of the assumptions used for Iife expectancy, a male pensioner currently aged 60 would be expected to live for a
further 28 3 years (2010 28 2 years) Allowance 1s made for future improvements in life expectancy
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Noigs to the accounts coentinued

8 Pensions (confinued)

Balance sheet At 31/12/2011 At 31/12/2010
£'000 £'000

Defined benefit obligation 74,577 64,332
Far value of scheme assets (76,092) {67,780)
Pension asset in the balance sheet {1,515) (3,448)
The current allocation of pension scheme assets 1s as follows:® At 31/12/2011 At 31/12/2010
% £'000 % £'000

Equities 43 32,919 54 36,406
Index Iinked gilts 22 16,720 18 12,450
Liabilty drivers Investment 19 14,332 17 11,695
Property 1 646 1 636
Diversified growth fund 15 11,429 g 6,438
Cash - 46 1 155
Total 100 76,002 100 67,780
The following amounts are recognised in the iIncome and expenditure account 2011 2010
£°000 £'000

Current service cost 3,328 2,936
Interest cost 3,546 3,290
Expected return on pension scheme assets (4,489) (3,870}
Total expense recognised in income and expenditure account 2,385 2,356

Within the Income and expenditure account, current service costs are recognised within administration expenses, and the net of
nterest costs and the expected return on pension scheme assets 15 recognised as other finance income For 2011 this was an
income of £943,000, and for 2010, an income of £580,000

The defined benefit cbhgation moved over the year as follows 2011 2010

£000 £'000
Opening defined benefit obligation 64,332 57,495
Current service cost 3,328 2.938
Interest cost 3,546 3,280
Contnbutions by scheme members 718 642
Actuanal losses 3,993 1,007
Benefits paid (1,340} (1,038)
Closing defined benefit obligation 74,577 64,332
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8 Pensions (continued)

The fair value of the scheme assets maved over the year as follows: 2011 2010

£'000 £'000
Opening fair value of scheme assets 67,780 55,682
Expected return on scheme assets 4,489 3,870
Actuanal gans {269) 4,182
Contnbutions by the employer 4,714 4,442
Contnbutions by scheme members 718 642
Benefits paid (1,340) (1,038)
Closing fair value of scheme assets 76,092 67,780
The actual return on scheme assets was 4,220 8,052

Over the year to 31 December 2011, MPS made contributions of £4,714,133 (2010 £4,441,642) to the scheme It has been
agreed that future employer contributions will be at a rate of 16% of penstonable satanes for 80th scale members, 23% of
pensionable salanes for other scale members and a further £1,500,000 pa to fund the deficit revealed as part of the 2008
valuation Centributions will be reviewed following the completion of the next actuanal valuation due as at 31 December 2011

The following amounts are recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses 2011 2010
£'000 £'000
Actuanal losses/(gains) 4,262 (3,175
Five year history 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
£'000 £'000 £'000 £’000 £'000
Defined benefit obiigation 74,577 64,332 57,495 40,987 44,831
Farr value of scheme assets (76,092) (67,780) (55.882) (44,952) 47,672
(Surplus)/deficit {1,515) (3,448) 1,813 {3,965) (2,841}
Expenence adjustments on scheme liabilities 258 172 385 - -
Expernence adjustments on scheme assets 269 (4,182} {4,478) 7,603 (766)
Copynght
9 Intangible fixed assets £'000
Company
Cost
At 1 January 2011 394
At 31 December 2011 394
Amortisation
At 1 January 2011 16
Provided in year 18
At 31 December 2011 a4
Net bock value
At 31 December 2011 360
At 31 December 2010 378

The intangible fixed asset above relates to copynghts for educational traning matenal purchased by the parent company from
ancther group company, The Cognitive Consulting Group Pty Limited {See note 12)
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Notes 1o the accounts continued

10 Tangible fixed assets Freshold Leasehold Computers, fittings, Motor Total
property property and office furniture vehicles
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Cost or vatuation
At 1 January 2011 4,410 2,134 10,040 25 16,609
Additions - 178 1,953 - 2,131
Disposals - - t3)) - 8
Impairment {660) - - - {660}
Reclasshication {3,750} - - - (3,750}
At 31 December 2011 - 2,312 11,985 25 14,322

Deprecration

At 1 January 2011 105 932 5,669 7 7.713
Provided in year 106 290 1,460 5 1,861
Reteased on disposals - - (7} - {7}
Released on impairment (211) - - - (211)
At 31 December 2011 - 1,222 8,122 12 9,356

Net book value

At 31 December 2011 - 1,090 3,863 13 4,966
At 31 December 2010 4,305 1,202 3,371 18 8,896
Company

Cost or valuaton

At 1 January 2011 4,410 2,164 9,811 25 16,410
Additions - 178 1,892 - 2070
Disposals - - &) - )]
Impairment (660) - - - (660}
Reclassification (3.750) - - - 3,750)
At 31 December 2011 - 2,342 11,695 25 14,062

Depreciation

At 1 January 2011 105 926 6,478 7 7516
Provided in year 106 289 1,435 5 1,835
Released on disposals - - gl - (7
Released on mpairment (211) - - - (211)
At 31 December 2011 - 1,215 7,906 12 9,133
Net book value

At 31 December 2011 - 1,127 3,789 13 4,929
At 31 December 2010 4,305 1,238 3,333 18 8,894

In 2011 1t was decided to acquire a new freehold property and dispose of the existing one, which was accordingly reclassified
as an asset held for resale (see note 13 below) as at 31 Decermnber 2011 At the same time the value of the property was
written down to the estimated resale value This 1s viewed as a permanent diminution In value

Al the leasehold properties held at 31 December 2011 are short leaseholds

Capital commitments
Capital expenditure approved and contracted for amounted to £10 1m (2010 £ nil) and related to the purchase of a new
freehold property as noted above, for which contracts were exchanged on 20 January 2012
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2011 2010 2011 2010
Group Group Company Company
11 Investments £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Valuation or cost at 1 January 1,527,192 1,296,999 921,010 856,011
Addihons and increase in investment in subsidiary undertakings 1,162,955 445,790 90,400 65,305
Disposals at carrying value {1,092,569) (332,293} - -
Provision for imparment of investment in subsidary undertakings - - (360} {306)
Movement in cash 15,718 (784} - -
Foreign exchange losses on hsted investments {27,262) (4,513) - -~
Surplus on revaluation of listed investments 91,397 121,893 - -
At 31 December 1,677,431 1,527,192 1,011,050 921,010
Investments compnse
Listed on UK Stock Exchange
- Equities 219,628 217,093 - -
— Government and other bonds 951,578 832,206 - -
Listed on overseas Stock Exchanges
- Equities 242,675 229,771 - -
- Government and other bonds 188,152 195,001 - -
Unlisted 47,875 41,318 - -
Shares in group undertakings - - 1,011,050 921.010
Cash 27,523 11,805 - -
1,677,431 1,527,192 1,011,050 921,010
Histoncal cost of investments 1,416,391 1,302,685 1,011,050 921,010

12 Investments in subsidiary undertakings
MPS has the following direct interests in subsidiary undertakings

Name Parent and group Cost of parent Country of ncorporation | Nature of business
interest In ordinary Investment ar registration
shares and vohing nghts £'000

Dental Protection Limited 100% - England To manage the advisory
and administrative affairs
of the dental dwvision of MPS

MPI {London) Limited 100% 1,000,001 England To manage the nvestment
portfolio

DPL Austraha Pty Limited 100% - Austraha To manage the administrative
affars of Dental Protection
Limited in Australa

MPS Risk Solutions 100% 11,000 England The provision of general

bLimited nsurance contracts to
organisations in the
healthcars sector

MPS Penodical Payment 100% 40 England Corporate Trustee

Trustee Limited

MPS Holdings Australia 100% £} Australia Holding company

Pty Limited

The Cognitive Consulting 100% - Australa To provide commurication

Group Pty Limited” skills and nsk management
training to healthcare
professionals in Australia

" Indirectly owned by MPS
All the above subsidianes operate in therr country of incorporation or registration
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Notes to the accounts continued

13

14

i5

2011 2010 2011 2010

Group Group Company Company

Asset held for resale £'000 £'000 £'000 £°000
Freehold property 3,750 - 3,750 -
3,750 - 3,750 -

As stated in note 10 above, MPS's existing property, which was offered for sale in 2011, was reclassified as an asset held for
resale at 31 December 2011 Since 1999 the property has been revalued and recognised at valuation in the balance sheet
in accordance with FRS15, Tangible Fixed Assets The property will In future be revalued to its estimated resale value If the
freehold property had not been revalued and subsequently impaired it would have been included in the balance sheet at the

following amount

£'000
Cost 5,341
Depreciation {1,304)
At 31 December 2011 4,037
At 31 December 2010 4,130
201 2010 2011 2010
Group Group  Company Company
Debtors £000 £'000 £000 £000
Receivable within one year
Trade debtors 463 405 129 82
Recoverable insurance ¢lams 5,464 7,401 5,464 7.401
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 85,286 96,122
Other debtors 167 293 135 209
Prepayments 5,063 4,486 5,019 4,440
11,157 12,585 96,033 108,254
Receivable after one year
Recoverable insurance clams 21,857 29,805 21,857 29,605
Tota! debtors 33,014 42,190 117,890 137,859
2011 2010 2011 2010
Group Group  Company Company
Credrtors: amounts falling due within one year £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Corporation tax 12,308 8,017 1,692 868
Other taxes and social secunty 2,137 1,783 2,047 1,711
Cther creditors and accruals 6,551 5,986 5,589 4,776
Deferred subscription income 43,714 38,646 41,845 37,007
64,710 54,432 51,173 44,362
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Reported Reported Claims

negligence clams other claims handiing Total

16 Prowvision for habiities: €000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group

At 1 January 2011 524,064 40,926 27,136 592,126

Moverments in the year
- Charged to the iIncome and expenditure account

Reported negligence clams 179,339 - 10,438 189,777
Reported other clams - 31,707 20,041 51,748
Paid {153,380) {28,141) (28,884) {210,405)
At 31 December 2011 550,023 44,492 28,731 623,246
Company

At 1 January 2011 514,647 40,926 26,665 582,238

Movements in the year
- Charged to the income and expenditure account

Reported negligence clams 175,506 - 10,249 185,755
Reported other claims - 31,707 20,041 51,748
Pad {153.121) (28,141) (28,874) {210,136)
At 31 December 2011 537,032 44,492 28,081 609,605

The reported negligence claims provision is the estimated discounted future settlement values for damages and legal costs in
respect of all negligence claims notified by 31 December The reported other claims provision is the estmated discounted future
settlement value of legal costs relating to these claims notified by 31 December The clams handling provision 1s the estimated
internal cost of managing all reported claims to conclusion

The timing of ndmidual clam payments s uncertamn, as they are the subject of itigation

The reported neghgence claims provision 1S stated before insurance recoveries of £27 3m (2010 £35 9m} that are estimated to
be recoverable from MPS3's insurers

Although FRS12 requires that the unwinding of the discount within a provision be shown separately, it 18 not considered practical
for these provisions, due to the complexrties of the many actuanal calculations involved

Revaluation Income and Accumulated
Expenditure
17 Movement on reserves £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
At 1 January 2011 203,753 815,001 1,018,754
Surplus on revaluation of isted investrents 91,397 - 91,397
Loss on impairment of fixed assets (178) - (178)
Realised on disposal of investments (27,602) 27,602 -
Actuanal losses recognised in pension scheme - 4.262) {4,262)
Tax charge on recognised investment gans - (18,217) {18,217)
Net contnbution for the year after tax - 39,475 38475
At 31 December 2011 267,370 859,599 1,126,969
Company
At 1 January 2011 178 460,897 461,075
lLLoss on imparment of fixed assets (178} - (178)
Actuanal losses recognised in pension scheme - {4.262) {4.262)
Net contnbution for the year after taxation - 40913 40,913
At 31 December 2011 - 497,548 497,548
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Notes to the accounis contnued

18

19

21

2011 2010

Reconciliation of movements in funds avalable to meet future liabilities £'000 £'000
Net contnbution for the financial year 39,475 {9,512)
Other recognised gans relating to the year 86,957 125,168
Jax charge on investment gains {18,217) (10,018)
Total recognised gains 108,215 105,638
Opening funds availlable to meet future habilites and charges 1,018,754 913,116
Closing funds available to meet future liabiities and charges (see note 23) 1,126,969 1,018,754
2011 2010

Reconciliation of excess/(deficit) of income over expenditure to operating cash flows £000 £'000
Excess/{defict) of mcome over expenditure 9,785 {34,907)
Depreciation charges 1,861 1,590
Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets - 5
Imparment of fixed assets 2m -
Increase In provisions 31,120 118,272
Decrease/{increase) in debtors 9,176 {1.7686)
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 6,347 (3.825)
Foraign exchange losses on listed investments 27,262 4,513
Cash pension contrbutions more than current service cost {1.386) (1.508)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 84,436 82,576
2011 2010

20 Returns on investment and servicing of finance £'000 £'000
Interest receved 1,052 1,160
Bond and gilt interest received 28,174 25,811
Other interest 1,212 1,634
Net cash inflow from returns on investments and servicing of finance 30,438 28,505
2011 2010

Capital expenditure and financial investment £'000 £'000
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 2,131) {1,885)
Purchase of investments {1,162,955) (445,790
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 1 -
Proceeds from sale of nvesiments 1,089,237 336,300
Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (75,848) (111,175




2011 2010 2011 2010
Group Group Company Company
22 Commitments £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Operating lease commtments
Land and buldings, leases expirng
Within one year 594 - 594 -
Two to five years 364 1,335 343 1.316
Greater than five years 1,19 1,136 1,191 1,136
2,149 2,471 2,128 2,452
Motor vehicles, leases expiring
Within one year 6 3 6 3
Two to five years 19 20 19 20
25 23 25 23
Office equipment, leases expinng
Within one year 30 - 30 -
Two to five years 51 62 51 62
81 62 81 62

MPS has guaranteed that its subsidianes have adequate resources to meet therr habiities as they fall due

MPS has 1ssued a letter of credit to MPS Risk Sclutions Limited in the sum of £20 milion

23 Potential claims that have not yet been reported

Incidents that could potentially lead to clams that have occurred pnor to the end of the financial year, but that have not been
reported to MPS by the year end, are known as Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR} clams 1BNR clams do not constitute a
contingent liability, and are not therefore recognised n the financial statements, because recognition of the lability 1s dependent
on the Council exercising Its discretion These potential claims, will, to the extent to which the Council exercises that discretion
to indemnify, become MPS's responsibility under the occurrence basis of cover MPS provides The funds on the balance sheet
at 31 December 2011 are more than sufficient to cover the cost of these potential clams based on an actuanal assessment
prepared by an ndependent firm of consulting actuanes and detalled in a report prepared In accordance with the Guidance Note

“General Insurance Busingss Actuanial Reports, (GN12)" published by the Faculty of Actuanes and Institute of Actuanes

24 Obligations of Members

MPS has the nght to call each year for additional funds from ts members up to an amount equal to the annual subscription

25 Guarantee

MPS I1s iritedt by guarantee not exceeding £1 per member




Professional advisers

Investment managers

Solicitors

State Street Global Advisers Limited
25 Bank Street
London, E14 5NU

Investec Asset Management SA
36 Hans Stnjdom Avenue
Foreshore

Cape Town 8001

South Afnca

AllanceBernstein Limited
1 Mayfar Place
London, W1X 8Jd

Schroder Investment Management Limited
31 Gresham Sireet
London, EC2V 7QA

Barning International Fund Managers {Irefand) Ltd
Georges Court

54-62 Townsend Street

Dublin 2, Ireland

Macquane Capital Funds {Eurcpe) Limited
Level 35, CityPoint

1 Ropemaker Street

London, EC2Y 9HD

Macquane Caprtal Funds Lirmited
125 West 55th Street

Level 22

New York

NY 10018

United States of Amenca

Newton Investment Management Lid
Bank of New York

Mellon Centre

160 Queen Victona Street

London, EC4V 4LA

Ruffer LLP
80 Victona Strest
London, SW1E 5JL

FEM Investrnent Management Limited
7th Floor, The Adelph

1-11 John Adam Street

London, WC2N 6HT

BlackRock Asset Management Ireland Ltd
JP Morgan House

International Financial Services Centre
Dubln 1

Ireland

MPS retains a panel of over 40 law firms around the
world to prownde advice to members

Insurance Brokers

Miler Insurance Senvices Limited
Dawscn House

5 Jewry Street

London, EC3N 2PJ

Bankers

Barclays Bank pic
1 Churchill Place
London, E14 5HP

HSBC Bank plc

Yorkshire Corporate Banking Centre
4th Floor, City Point

29 King Street

Leeds, LS1 2HL

Auditors

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Ne 1 Whitehall Riverside
Leeds, LS1 4BN

Actuanes

Lane Clark & Peacock LLP
30 Cld Burlington Street
London, W1S 3NN
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MEDICAL PROTECTION SOCIETY LIMITED
PROFESSIONAL SUPPORT AND EXPERT ADVICE

How to contact us

The Medical Protection
Society Limited

33 Cavendish Square
London, W1G 0PS
United Kingdem

Tel +44 (0)20 7399 1300
Fax +44 {0)20 7389 1301

Granary Wharf House
Leeds LS11 5PY
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)113 243 6436
Fax +44 (0)113 241 0500

39 George Street
Edinburgh, EH2 2HN
United Kingdom

Tet +44 (Q)131 240 1840
Fax +44 (0)131 240 1878

info@mps org uk
www mps org uk
www medicalprotection org

Dental Protection
Limited

33 Cavendish Square
London, W1G 0PS
United Kingdom

Ted +44 {0)20 7399 1400
Fax +44 {0)20 7399 1401

Granary Wharf House
leeds LS11 5PY
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)113 243 6436
Fax +44 {0)113 241 0601

39 George Street
Edinburgh, EH2 2HN
Urited Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)131 240 1840
Fax +44 (0)131 240 1878

info@dpl org uk

www dentalprotection org uk

MPS Risk Solutions
Limited

Granary Wharf House
Leeds, |.511 5PY
United Kingdom

Tel +44 (0)113 241 0395
Fax +44 {0)113241 0387

info@mpsrs co uk
WWW MIPSrs co uk

MPS Risk Solutions 1s a general
nsurance company regulated by

the FSA

The Medical Protection Society 1s the leading prowvider of comprehensive professional
Indemnity and expert advice o docters, dentists and health professionals around the world

MPS s not an insurance company All the benefits of membership of MPS
are discretionary as set out in the Memorandum and Articles of Association

The Medical Protection Society Lirmited A company Imited by guarantes

Registered in England No 36142 at 33 Cavendish Square London W1G OPS

MPS1421 04/12

Cogmitive Consulting Group
Pty Limited

85 Park Road, Milton,
Bnsbane, Queensland
4064 Australia

Tel +61 738765711
Fax +61 7 3876 5522




